WORKSHOP MEETING
(In preparation for the meeting of August 11, 2025)

Monday, August 4, 2025
Plymouth Township Building
6:00PM

AGENDA

1. CALLTO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
2. PUBLIC COMMENT

3. ANNOUNCEMENTS
A. Council will meet in an Executive Session at the conclusion of the meeting to
discuss collective bargaining, public safety, and potential litigation matters.

4. PRESENTATION ITEMS (Workshop Only)
A. 300 Lee Drive — Zoning Hearing appeal/application
B. BET - Proposed Conshohocken Ridge Mixed Use Development at Ridge Pike and
Colwell Lane

5. DISCUSSION ITEMS (Workshop Only)
A. None.

6. ACTION ITEMS

A. Motion to Appoint John Tse to the Environmental Advisory Board to fill an
unexpired term
Motion to Approve the meeting minutes for July 7, 2025, Council Workshop and
July 14, 2025, Business Meeting
Motion to Approve the departmental reports and schedule of bills for July 2025.
Motion to Approve the Promotion of David Phillips to the Rank of Sergeant
Motion to Approve the Promotion of Rocco Wack to the Rank of Lieutenant
Motion to Approve the Promotion of John Fullerton to the Rank of Sergeant
Motion to Approve swearing-in of Probationary Patrol Officer: Eric Gainor
Motion to Approve Escrow Release: Black Horse Woods subdivision
Motion to Approve changing meeting times for Council Regular meetings to 6PM
for the remainder of 2025
Motion to Approve advertisement for Zoning Map Amendment application: 521,
523, 525 Plymouth Road

~TIemmoo ®

o
.

7. DEPARTMENTAL UPDATES (Workshop Only)

Page 1 of 2



8. INFORMATION ITEMS
A. Citizens Board Vacancy Announcements
B. Zoning Hearings
C. Parks and Recreation
i. Upcoming Events
D. Connaughtown Update

9. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
10. ADJOURNMENT

Page 2 of 2



g

2}

(3)
(4)

(5)
(6)

(7)

8

(9)

(10}

(11}

(12}

Owner's Name and Address:_Same as Applicant

./-x'\ /‘H‘\
APPLICATION/APPEAL TO THE ZONING HEARING BOARD
PLYMOUTH TOWNSHIP
700 BELYOIR ROAD
PLYMOUTH MBETING, PA 19462

Applicant/Appeliant's Name and Address: EVB {

DATE: June 19, 2025

Gravers Road, LLC

601 Gravers Road, Plymouth Meeting, PA 19462

- PHONE NO.:

PHONE NO.:

Lessee's Name and Address:

(If Applicable)

Location of Premises: 300 Lee Drive, Plymouth Meeting, PA

Dimensions of Lot: hregular - Approximately 3.06

5 acres

Present Zoning Classification of Premises: L] - 1

The improvements thereon are:_Unimproved Vac)

imited Industrial

ant Lot

and the present use of the land and/or building i

5 _Yacant

if this is an application for a SPECIAL EXCEPT!

ION check here [ ] and state the specific sections of the

PLYMOUTH TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE uj

hon which the applicant relies:

if this is an appeal from a decision of the BUILDING INSPECTOR/ZONING OFFICER seeking a VARIANCE

from the terms of the PLYMOUTH TOWNSHIP Z
sections of the ORDINANCE as to which the VA

Section 1400

ONING ORDINANCE check here P and state the specific
RIANCE is being sought;

S Rt
The {SPECIAL EXCEPTION) {VARIANCE) requested is as follows: Y i -.4’
See Attached Addendum N S E
© e 0
- =

LY 75
N sy T T
. . L N g A
Describe what is proposed of real estate in question: _See Attached Addendurit ."b
o IS

There must be attached hereto a plot plan, adcurately drawn to scale, of the real estate in question,

indicating the location and dimensions of the t
proposed fo be erected.

ract and improvements erected thereon as well as those

ALL PLANS MUST BE FOLDED OR THE APPLICATION WILL NOT BE

ACCEPTED,

(OVER)




{13} There must be paid herewith for a single-family
thereto a nonrefundable-filing fee of TWO HU
nonrefundable filing fee of ONE THOUSAND DO

"PLYMOUTH TOWNSHIP",
STATE OF PENNSYLVANIA:

88
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY:

Ve -
/4/?//2«/ éf‘_’ &Ms‘/ , being duly sworn

{
aﬁp'iicant above named and that the facts set forth i3

exhibits submitted therewith, are true and correct to th

dwelling andfor any structure appurtenant or accessory
DRED DOLLARS {$200.00} and for all other structures a
LARS ($1,000.00). PLEASE MAKE CHECK PAYABLE TO

ffirmed according fo law, deposes and says that he is the

the foregoing application/appeal and all documents or
best of his knowledge, information and helief.

Commonwealth of Pennsytvarnia 7 <
APPLiCANnAPPELLANgounw of ﬁf}"/i}ffjmﬂ'ﬁy 7 (/ /ommonwealth of Pennsyivania - Nolary Seal
< Kimbetly Zera, Notary Public
Montgomery County

SWORN : MycommissimexpiresMays.QOQG

AFFIRMED AND SUBSCRIBED TO : 3'-6' Commissiunnumberﬁ%?:t l
P ~ 7= ¥ mombat, Pannoylvanka Assoclatlon of Notaries

M"r@v»n E Bowe

BEFOREMNIE/THIS / JDAY OF &
WNER'

8 s]q(mwﬁr—: - IF APPLICABLE)

SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS

FOR RESIDENTIAL APPLICATIONS - ORIGINAL AND
SUPPORTING PAPERS, OR FOR COMMERCIAL, INDUS

FIFTEEN (15) COPIES OF THE APPLICATION AND ALL
STRIAL, MULTI-FAMILY APPLICATIONS - ORIGINAL AND

TWENTY-FOUR {24} COPIES OF THE APPLICATION AND ALL SUPPORTING PAPERS SHALL BE FILED WiTH

THE ZONING OFFICER, ZONING OFFICE, PLYMOUTH
PA 18462, ONLY THE ORIGINAL APPLICATION/APPEA

TOWNSHIP, 700 BELVOIR ROAD, PLYMOUTH MEETING,
L NEED BE VERIFIED BY AFFIDAVIT.

IMPORTANT NOTICE

YOUR APPLICATION WILL BE SCHEDULED FOR A HE#

ARING AT THE NEXT REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETING

OF THE PLYMOUTH TOWNSHIP ZONING HEARING B

ARD. YOU MUST BE PREPARED TO PRESENT YOUR

ENTIRE CASE AT THIS MEETING. ANY APPLICATION FOR CONTINUANCE OF THE HEARING MUST BE IN
WRITING, AND YOU MUST GIVE THE REASONS FOR THE REQUEST. THE APPLICATION FOR CONTINUANCE
MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE ZONING OFFICER NO LATER THAN 3:00 P.i1. ON THE THURSDAY BEFORE THE

ZONING HEARING. NO APPLICATIONS FOR CONTIRUANCE WILL BE ACCEPTED AFTER THAT DEADLINE
UNLESS THE APPLICANT APPEARS BEFORE THE ZONING HEARING BOARD TO APPLY FOR A CONTINUANCE.
MIORE THAN ONE REQUEST FOR A CONTINUANCE ON ANY APPLICATION MUST BE MADE IN PERSON, AND

SUCH REQUESTS WILL NOT NORMALLY BE GRANTELD

DO NOT WRITE

' UNLESS THERE ARE SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES.,

BELOW THIS LINE

CERTIFICATION (

The above applicationfappeal was advertised in

F ADVERTISEMENT

On the following dates:

{Newspaper)

DATE POSTED ON PREMISES

ZONING OFFICER




Craig R. Lewis, Esquire

Kaplin Stewart Meloff Reiter & Stein, PC
Union Meeting Corporate Center

910 Harvest Drive

Post Office Box 3037

Blue Bell, PA 19422

(610) 941-2584

rlewis@kaplaw.com

Attorneys for Applicant

BEFORE THE ZONING HEARING BOARD OF

PLYMOUTH TOWNSHIP, MONT

GOMERY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA

In the Matter of:

EVB Gravers Road, LLC
300 Lee Drive, Plymouth Meeting, PA

Tax Parcel No. 49-00-04509-01-4

ADDENDUM TO ZONING

ARING BOARD APPLICATION

EVB Gravers Road, LLC, by and thrTgh their attorney Craig R. Lewis, Esquire, hereby

files this addendum to their Application to
appealing the June 4, 2025 determination of
alternative seeking a variance from Section 1

to permit a “lay-down” yard for outdoor stora

the Plymouth Township Zoning Hearing Board
the Plymouth Township Zoning Officer or, in the
400 of the Plymouth Township Zoning Ordinance

ge of inventory, materials and equipment in the LI-

Limted Industrial Zoning District, and in support thereof states as follows:

1. Name and Address of Own

er/Applicant. In accordance with a deed dated

August 27, 2024, EVB Gravers Road, LLC
Gravers Road, Plymouth Meeting, PA, 19462
Application. A copy of the Deed is attached hy

2. Description of the Property.

1s 1dentified as 300 Lee Drive, Plymouth Meg

conditions Plan prepared by Eustace Engi

{(“Owner”), having a mailing address of 601 S.
, is the owner of the property that is subject of this
ereto as Exhibit “A”

The property that is the subject of this application
ting, PA (“Property”). As detailed on an existing

incering, Inc. dated April 11, 2025 (“Existing




Conditions Plan”) a copy of which is att
approximately 3.065 acre (+/-) parcel of land
01-4 (“Property”). Property is undeveloped
Lot 2. Plymouth Meeting Park (“PMP”) is
Pennsylvania Turnpike and Gallagher Roa
commercial and light industrial buildings in
s.f. office/warehouse facility. All but one
identified as Lee Drive. EVB is the owi]
conjunction with its towing and recovery bus

3. Zoning Classification. The P

Pursuant to the Plymouth Township Code (“C
District are governed by Section 1400 of the (

4. Proposed Use. On or about |
grading permit (“Application”) to permit thg

(“Proposed Use”). The Application was su

d.

ached hereto as Exhibit “B”,! the Property is an

more specifically identified as TMP #49-00-04509-

and is also referred to a Plymouth Meeting Park —
nine (9) lot industrial park located adjacent to the

Lots within PMP are improved with various

cluding hotels, a self-storage facility and a 144,236

of the PMP lots front on the private loop-road

ler of the adjacent PMP Lot 1 which is uses in
ness.

roperty is located in LI - Limited Industrial District.

ode”), permitted uses within the Limited Industrial

Code.

April 11, 2025 EVB submitted an application for a

Property to be used as a contractor’s lay-down lot

pported by plans prepared by Eustace Engineering

previously defined as the Grading Permit Plans. A copy of sheet 3 of the Grading Permit Plans,

entitled “Site Plan” is attached hereto as E
proposes to clear and level the Property to cj
yard. For security purposes, the Lay-down 7
fence. Access to the lay-down yard is propo

conjunction with the lay-down yard EVB

! The Existing Conditions Plan is sheet 2 of 16 fr
Improvements Plan — 300 Lee Drive”, dated April 11,
the “Grading Permit Plans”)

xhibit “C”.

As detailed on the Site Plan, EVB

eate an approximately 75,350 s.f. gravel lay-down
rard will be enclosed with a 6-foot high chain link

sed by way of two driveways from Lee Drive. In

will construct necessary retaining walls, install

bm plans prepared by Eustace Engineering entitled ““Site

025 consisting of sixteen (16) sheets (collectively hereinafter



required landscaping and buffering and constijuct stormwater management facilities; all of which

are detailed on the Site Plan. EVB does not p

this time.

S.

Limited Industrial District is governed by Seq

permits a wide array of commercial and 1

following:

Applicable Regulations and Z

ropose to construct any building on the Property at

Zoning Determination. Use of property in the LI-

Fabrication of products from
limited to, bone, cloth or texti
paper, sheet rubber, shell or wo

Manufacturing or processing d
(exclusive of fish packing or
plastics, electrical appliances,
instruments, jewelry, time pi
cosmetics (exclusive of soap)
purposes of this article, tr
manufacturing or processing;

tion 1400 of the Zoning Ordinance. Section 1400

ndustrial uses, including but not limited to the

previously prepared materials, including, but not
les, cork, flooring, fur, feathers, hair, horn, glass,
od;

f beverages, confections, cream, all food products
as otherwise excepted herein) ceramics, clothing,
furniture, hardware, tools, patterns, dies, scientific
eces, optical goods, musical instruments, toys,

tobacco products, and pharmaceuticals. For the
aish  transfer stations shall not be considered

Wholesale trade, including, byt not limited to, the storage and sale of lumber,

plumbing supplies, electrical
retail sales and services;

Food service or catering; provi
Printing of paper, plastic and m
Public utility facilities;

Research, development and tes

Warehousing and distributing]

laundering, cleaning and dyei
smithing; extrusion of small m
plant; and frozen food locker;

Hotel; and
Self-storage Facility.

supplies, building materials and supplies, except

Hed, that no food is served to customers on-site;

etal;

ing of new products, laboratories;

excluding storage for personal household use;
ng; sale of ice, coal, fuel oil, monuments; metal
hterials; welding, body repair; plating; cold storage




During review of the Application, the Plym

the Proposed Use of the Property. By ema

routh Township Engineer requested clarification of

il correspondence dated May 22, 2025, counsel for

EVB stated that the Proposed Use is as follows:

The proposed use for the Proy
yard. Storage of materials al
specifically permitted use in
permitted uses specifically ;
constructed and occupied, byl
among other things, “Wholes
storage and sale of lumber,
supplies, except retail sales
distributing”. This will not be

By e-mail correspondence dated Juen 4, 2025
as follows:

Our team did come to a coj
“wholesale trade” requires sor
isn’t happening here. This mg
under 1400(C) won’t apply.
under 1400(H), also doesn’
distributing” of materials. Th
storage outside and not withi
distribution taking place, so it

The Zoning Officer’s June 4, 2025 email cor]

a permitted use of the Property (“Zonj

erty is pretty simple, a contractors lay-down

nd equipment. My reading is that this is a

the LI-District. As noted on the attached,

provide that not only may a building be

t that “a lot may be used or occupied” for,
ale Trade, including but not limited to “the
plumbing supplies, building materials and
ind services” as well as “warehousing and
a junk-yard.

, the Plymouth Township Zoning Officer concluded

rclusion that the Ordinance’s definition of
me aspect of the sale of merchandise, which
ans that your argument that this is permitted
The other argument, that this is permitted
i work, as it requires “warehousing and
is isn’t really “warehousing” since its just
n a building, and even if it was, there’s no
still wouldn’t qualify under this use.

respondence concludes that the Proposed Use is not

ing Determination™) and constitutes a zoning

determination in accordance with the Municipalities Planning Code.

6.

Appeal and Alternative Request for Relief,

EVB hereby appeals the

Zoning Determination.
Section 1400 specifically provides as
A building or combination of

and a lot may be used or occy
combination of the following 1

follows:

buildings may be erected, altered or used
pied for any of the following purposes or a
Urposes.




The plain language of the Zoning Ordinance fprescribes that a “lot” may be used for any and all

of the specifically stated permitted uses. The [Zoning Ordinance does not require that any of the

permitted uses be conducted within a building.

The Zoning Determination would require that all

of the permitted uses set forth in Section 1400 be principally conducted within a building; a

conclusion directly at odds with the plain language of the Zoning Ordinance that permits “a lot

may be used or occupied for any of the following purposes or combination of the following

purposes.”

In accordance with Section 603.1 of|the Municipalities Planning Code (“MPC”), any

ambiguity in a zoning ordinance must be resolved in favor of the landowner. Zoning Ordinances

are to be construed expansively, affording

the landowner the broadest possible use and

enjoyment of its land. broadly to give the landowner the greatest use of their property. See, e.g.

Kleinman v. Lower Merion Twp. Zoning Hdaring Bd., 916 A.2d 726, 729 (Pa. Commw. Ct.

2006). In this case, although the language of|the Zoning Ordinance appears to clearly permit a

“lot” to be used for any and all of the permitted uses, the Zoning Determination creates an ,

ambiguity by concluding that none of the pgrmitted uses may be conducted on the Property

unless they are associated with a building. Fuyrther, the terms “warehousing” and “distributing”

are not defined by the Zoning Ordinance. A}

such, there is inherent ambiguity or doubt as to

what these terms mean when the Zoning Ordirlance clearly prescribes that these activities may be

conducted on a “lot”. Therefore, the Zoning

restrictive reading of the Zoning Ordinance

Determination is in error as it imposes the most

and the most confiscatory application of the

regulation. Therefore, the Zoning Determination is violative of the mandate of Section 603.1 of

the MPC. Wherefore, EVB requests that {the Zoning Hearing Board reverse the Zoning

Determination and conclude that the Proposed [Use is a specifically permitted use of the Property.




N

Alternatively, EVB requests a varianfe from Section 1400 to permit the Proposed Use.

7. Standards and Criteria. Als will be demonstrated further by the evidence and

testimony presented during the hearing in this matter, the Property is uniguely situated.
Applicants’ request for relief from the Zonng Ordinance will not detract from the appropriate
use and enjoyment of adjacent properties, fior cause injury to the public health, safety and/or
welfare. Indeed, as will be demonstrated by levidence and testimony at the hearing int his matter,
the Proposed Use is consistent with the upe of numerous other properties in the immediate
vicinity,

WHEREFORE, Applicant requests|that the Zoning Hearing Board reverse the Zoning
Determination, or in the alternative grant thie requested variance from the Plymouth Township
Zoning Ordinance and such other relief as is recessary to permit the use of the Inventory Storage

as described above.

Respdctfully Submitted,

517'/7%/ *

CRAJG R. LEWIS, ESQUIRE
Attorrjey for Applicant

Date: June 19, 2025




EXHIBIT “A”

Deed




DEED BK 637. » 00708
INSTRUMENT # . .
RECORDED DATE: 2024 10:50:59 AM

- M

6341665-001 8-

RECORDER OF DEEDS
MONTGOMERY COUNTY
Jeanne Sorg

One Montgomery Plaza

Swede and Airy Streets ~ Suite 303

P.O. Box 311 ~ Norristown, PA 19404

Office: (610) 278-3289 ~ Fax! {610) 278-3869
MONTGOMERY COUNTY ROD

OFFICIAL RECORDING COVER PAGE Page L of 4

Document Type: Deed Transaction #: 6978596 - 1 Doc{s)
Document Date: 08/27/2024 Pocument Page Count: 3
Reference Info: Operator Id: epilgren
RETURN TO: {(Simplifile} PAID BY:
Germantown Title Company GERMANTOWN TITLE COMPANY
502 W Germantown Pike, Suite 200
East Norriton, PA 159403
{610} 631-1540
* PROPERTY DATA:
Parcei ID #: 45-3G-04509-01-4
Address: 300 LEE DR

PA
Municipality: Plymouth Township {100%)
School District: Coloniat

* ASSOCIATED DOCUMENT(S):

CONSIDERATION/SECURED AMT: $1,600,000.00 DEED BK 6375 PG 06705 to {0708
TAXABLE AMOUNT: $1,600,000.00 Recorded Date: 08/30/2024 10:50:59 AM
FEES / TAXES:
Recording Fee:Deed $86.,75 I hereby CERTIFY that this document is
State RTT $16,000.00 recorded in the Recorder of Deeds Office in
Plymouth Township RTT $8,000.00 Montgomery County, Pennsyivania.
Colonial School District RTT $8,000.00
QX\Q\\\“‘E“;;?HH;;%
Total: $32,086.75 Siteh,
F& %
E §
) o .
oo
%.i‘;ﬁﬁ,{m?\‘\g Jeanne Sorg
Recorder of Deeds

Revl 2016-01-29

PLEASE DC NOT DETACH

THIS PAGE 1S NOW PART OF THIS LEGAL DOCUMENT

NOTE: if document data differs from cgver sheet, document data always supersedes.
*COVER PAGE DOES NOT INCLUDE ALL DATA, PLEASE SEE INDEX AND DOCUMENT FOR ANY ADDITIONAL INFORMATICN

Digitally signed 06/18/2025 by montgomery.county.radi@govos.com o,
eCertified copy of recorded # 2024045831 {page 1 of 4) +Jf
Certified and Digita!!y Signed Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds

Vatidalion may require Adebe Windows lalenmbon’




T

08/30/2024 10:50:59 AM DEED Bk

Prepared By:

Germantown Title Company

502 W. Germantown Pike, Suite 200
East Norriton, PA 18403

File No.: GEN-50852-PS

Return To:

Germantown Title Company

502 W. Germantown Pike, Suite 200
East Norriton, PA 19403

Parsel No(s).: 48-00-04509-01-4

(6375 PG 00706

. -‘_h\\

MONTCO

MONTGOMERY COUNTY COMIMISSIONERS REGISTRY
49-00-04505-01-4  PLYMOUTH TOWNSHIP

300 LEE DR
PLYMOUTH HOSPITALITY LLC $15.00
B 036 L2 U020 2308 08/30/2024 Ju

Address: 300 Lee Drive
Township of Piymouth
Consideration: $1,600,000.60
SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED

THIS INDENTURE Made this 27" day of

Avowsh 2Ls2.Y between Plymouth

Hospitality LLC, a Pennsylvania limited liak
EVB Gravers Road, LLC, a Pennsvlvania
"Granteg").

WITNESSETH: That the said Grantor in consid
Dollars ($1,600,000.00) to them now paid by
herecf, the receipt and sufficiency of which 4

ility cdmpany, (hereinafter referred 10 as "Grantor”}, and
imsited liability company, (hereinafter referred o as

eration of One Million Six Hundred Thousand And No/100
the said Grantee, at or before the sealing or delivering
re hereby acknowledged, do grant, bargain, seil, alien,

enfeoff, release, convey, and confirm unto the said Grantee, their heirs, successors and assigns;

AlL THAT CERTAIN lot or piece of ground, witl]

the buildings and improvements thereon erected, situate

in the Township of Piymouth, County of Montgomery and Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, as shown on

plans entitled "Plymouth Meeting Park - Planneg
Community Association” as prepared for Fox Rg
21,2023, (ast revised July 25, 2023 and recordg
Deeds in Norristown, Pennsyivania, as fotiows, {

BEGINNING at a concrete monument on the No
said beginning peint, leaving said side of Lee Dr]
of a circle curving to the left having a radius of 8
point of tangency,; thence continuing along the s
278.06 feet to an iron pin, a point along fands no
thence extending along iands of the same, Norti]
an iron pin, a comer of Unit 2 (aka Lot No. 3); th

Community Declaration Plat for PMP Planned

thschild LLP by Joseph M. Estock, PE, PLS, dated April
d at the Office of the Montgomery County Recorder of
> wit:

rithwesterly side of Lee Drive {60 feet wide), thence from
ve and extending along lands of Lot No. 1, along the are
3.41 feet, the arc distance of 157 42 feet to an iron pin, a
bme, North 31 degrees 25 minutes 46 seconds West,
w or formerly of Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission;
72 degrees 56 minutes 52 seconds East, 401.92 feet to
Ence extending atong the same, South 31 degrees 25

minutes 46 seconds Cast, 285.94 feet to a concrete monument along the aforesaid side of Lee Drive;

thence extending along the same, South 58 deg
concrete monument, a point of curvature; thencs
curving to the right having a radius of 170,00 feg
a point of tangency,; thence continuing along the

75.10 feet to a concrete monument, being the fir

BEING Unit (1)- Lot 2 25 shown in Declaration rg

rees 34 minutes 14 seconds West, 382.24 feetto a
continuing along the same, along the arc of a gircle

i the are distance of 42.66 feet to a congrete monument,
same, South 72 degrees 58 minutes 52 seconds West,
5t mentioned point and piace of beginning.

corded in Deed Book 6355 Page 2047.

i

i

eCerlified copy of recorded # 2024045831 {page 2 of 4}
Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds




©8/30/2024 10:50:53 AM

BEING Parcel No. 49-00-04509-01-4

DEED BK g375

PG 00707

Being the same premises which Plymouth Park DFC, LLC, a Pennsyivania limited liability company by

Deed dated 5-2-2018 and recorded 5-2-2018 in M.

conveyed unto Plymouth Hospitality LLC,a Pennsy,

Delaware limited iability company, in fee.

UNDER AND SUBJECT TO, nevertheless, ail con

are contained in prior deeds or other instrumer

bntgomery County in Deed Book 6088 page 1009
fvania limited liability company, erroneously cited as a

veyances, exceptions, restrictions and conditions, which
ts of record in Montgomery County, Pennsyivania, all

visible easements; municipal zoning ordinancel; building codes; laws, ordinances or governmental
regulations relating to sewage disposal; and all laws, ordinances and regulations relating to subdivisions.

THIS DOCUMENT MAY {DOES) NOT SELL, CONVEY, TRANSFER, INCLUDE OR INSURE THE TITLE TO THE

COAL AND RIGHT OF SUPPORT UNDERNEATH
HEREIN, AND THE OWNER OR OWNERS OF SUCH
TO REMOVE ALL OF SUCGH COAL AND, IN THAT {
OF THE LAND AND ANY HOUSE, BUILDING GR OTi
OF THIS NOTICE DOES NOT ENLARGE, REST!
QOTHERWISE CREATED, TRANSFERRED, EXCEPTH

THE SURFACE LAND DESCRIBED QR REFERHED TO
COAL MAY HAVE {HAVE} THE COMPLETE LEGAL RIGHT
;ONNECTION, DAMAGE MAY RESULT TO THE SURFACE
HER STRUCTURE ON OR IN SUCH LAND, THE INCLUSION
RiCT OR MODIFY ANY LEGAL RIGHTS OR ESTATES
it} OR RESERVED BY THIS INSTRUMENT. {This statement

inserted pursuant to Act No. 431 of the (:ommonrvealth of Pennsylvania of 1957 P.L. 984, The foregoing

statement In and of ltseif shali not be construed
wlthin described premises.]

TOGETHER with all and singular, the said pro
watercourses, rights, liberties, privileges, herg
thereunto belonging, or in anywise appertaining,
profits thereof and all the estate, right, titie, prope
law, equity or otherwise howsoever, of, inand to

to be an exception or reservation of the coal under the

perty, improvements, ways, streets, passages, walers,
ditaments, interests and appurtenances whatsoever
and the reversions and remainders, renls, issues and
ty, claim and demand whatsoever of the said Granter, in
he same and every part thereof, with appurtenances;

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the said messuages or tenement and tract of land, hereditaments and
premises hereby granted and released, or mentiohed and intended so 1o be, with the appurtenances, unto

the said Grantee, their heirs and assigns, to and
heirs and assigns forever,

for the only proper use and behoof of the Grantee, their

And the said Grantor, for their heirs, successors

execlitors, administraters and assigns covenant, grant

and agree to and with the said Grantee, their heirs, successars and assigns, that the said Grantor, have
not done, committed, or knowingly or willingly suifered to be done or committed, any act, matter, or thing

whatsoever whergby the Premises hereby gr

nted or any parly thereof, is, are, shall, or may be

impeached, charged, or encumbered, in title, chafge, estate or otherwise howscever and the Grantor shall

and will SPECIALLY WARRANT and defend the

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY

Premises hereby conveyed.

LLEFT BLANK; SIGNATURE PAGE TOQ FOLLOW

eCerlified copy of recorded # 2024045831 (page 3 of 4)
Montgomery County Recorder of Deads

MONTCO

Ihn
1)




08/30/2024 10:50:58 AM ) DEED BK 6375 PG Q0708 MONTCO

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Grantor have hereunto set their hands and seais the day and year first
above written.

Attest;

Piymouth Hospitality LLC, a Pennsylvania limited
liability company

) <P

HeFarShah, Authorized Member

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
County of OUM bé‘_v?..\&ﬂ A

AND NOW, this 5\’7 day of Auq L?)‘P Zeiﬂbefore me, the undersigned Notary Public, appeared
Hemal Shah, who acknowledged himzelf to be thie Autherized Member of Plymouth Hospitality LLC, a
limited Hability company, and he, as such, being althorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for
the purposes therein contained by signing the name of the fimited liability company, by himseif as
Authorized Member.

Witness my hand and official seal, this the _ ] M dayof _BuGest 20 _&t

; Iﬂ./u«- (’f
(J Jbﬂ M A" - Cq/ij Commotwealth of Fennsylvania - Rotary Seal

NOtaW i ‘ . CHRISTOPHER A f;fr};f c;uct;ry Pubiic
My Commission Expires. G [ i { 2026 PHER A A
y i HH thy Commission £xpires September 4, 2016

Commisston Number 1285457

(SEAL}

Certificate of Residense

l, Dana Santangele Barth-Wagner, do hergby cgrtify that the precise residence and the complete post
office address of the within named grantee is:

1808 Butler Pike, Gonshohocken, PA 19428

RS~

DéaerSafitangelo Barth-Wagner

eCertified copy of recorded # 2024045831 {page 4 of 4) :
Monigomery County Recorder of Deeds 3




EXHIBIT “B”

Existing Conditions Plan




Kaplin Stewart

Altorneys at Law

June 20, 2025

HAND DELIVERY AND EMAIL (JR

Craig R. Lewis

Direct Dial: (610) 941-2584
Direct Fax: (610) 684-2021
Emaii: rlewis@kaplaw.com
www. kaplaw.com

IOWE@PLYMOUTHTOWNSHIP,ORG)

Joel Rowe, Zoning Officer
Plymouth Township

700 Belvoir Road

Plymouth Meeting, PA 19462

RE: Zoning Hearing Board Applicat]
300 Lee Drive, Plymouth Mee
OQur Reference No. 18843-1

on of EVB Gravers Road, LLC

ti111g, PA

Dear loel;

My firm represents EVB Gravers Road, L1.C (

at 300 Lee Drive, Plymouth Meeting, P
4 (the “Property”). Enclosed is an ap
Board appealing the June 4, 2025 Zonin

“Applicant”), the owner of the property located
, 19462, further identified as TMP #49-00-04509-01-
lication to the Plymouth Township Zoning Hearing

gDetermination or, in the alternative, seeking a variance

to allow the Property to be used as a contractor “lay-down” lot for storage of materials and

equipment {collectively herein, the “App
In support of the Application, I have encl

1. 25 copies of an executed! and no

as narrative/addendum to the App|

A. Deed to the Property;

B. Existing Conditions Plan (15 f

C. Site Plan (15 full-sized copieg

2.

Also enclosed is an additional copy of thé
stamped and returned to me with my mess

! The executed original Application will be delive
Kaplin Stewart
Union Meeting Corporate Center
910 Harvest Drive, P.0. Box 3037
Blue Bell, PA 194220765
610-260-6000 12)

A check in the amount of $1,000.(

ication”).

osed the following:

Iflarized Plymouth Township Form Application as well

ication attaching the following exhibits:

ull-sized copies and 10 ~ 11”x17” copies);
and 10 - 11”x17” copies); and
10 representing the required application fee.

: Application. Please have this additional copy time-
enger as proof of filing,

fed under separate cover.
Offices in
Pennsylvania
New Jersey




Joel Rowe, Zoning Officer
June 20, 2025
Page 2

If you have any questions or require any
convenience.

Enclosures

further information, please contact me at your earliest

Best regards,

& e Vi e

Craig Robert Lewis

cc (via e-mail). Kevin Bowe and Andfew Sabia, EVB Towing

Martin J. Eustace, Eug

tace Engineering




XAPROJECTS\2400 - 24992444101 - 300 Lee Drive Plymouth Meeting Pa\AutocCAD\DRAWINGS\Land Development\02 d-land development.dwg April 7, 2025

/-.../ / Address: 300 LEE DRIVE I % o Srhodli
// /\/ PLYMOUTH MEETING, PA 19462 : i i
/ / / Zoned: LIMITED INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT
e
g % -.....__/ ™~ Lot Area: 3.0653 ACRES
/ / 7> Owner/Applicant: .
/ yrigit) .
/ Kevin E. Bowe i Gk
// o EVB Towing
| o = Lence AN gg: Gra;:eh;s L?ne oA 10082
. \ oL eeting,
Parcel information:
/ Parcei ID: 48-00-04509-01-4
2
g
:‘Nﬁt ZONING DATA TABLE-LUMITED INDUSTRIAL REQUIRED/ EXISTING PROVIDED/ PROPOSED
§ DESCRIPTION LIMITED INDUSTRIAL LIMITED INDUSTRIAL
USE UNDEVELOPED EXTERIOR STORAGE
MINIMUM LOT AREA 2.0 ACRES 3.065 ACRES
MAXIMUM FLOOR AREA RATIO 50% N/A
BUILDING SETBACKS (BSBL):
FRONT| 50 ' N/A
REAR 50 N/A Location Map
MINIMUM PARKING SETBACKS: {PSL) Scale: 1" = 1000°
B FRON ' '
: PROPOSED &' HIGH sy = -
2 CHAIN LINK FENCE SIDE iie) 10
o ' REA ! '
. 93,65 i- 14.00 R ; 25 ; P2
I . I P‘Wo&d Fence MINIMUM LOT FRONTAGE 200' REQ,/ 390" EXISTING NO CHANGE Legend
. i | 1 d, | MAX BUILDING COVERAGE 33.33% N/A
R R MAX BUILDING HEIGHT 50/ N/A — Property Line / Right-of-Way
_ . 85L - (TYP, .
_ ) MAX IMPERVOUS COVERAGE- SF(75%) | 100,134 SF MAX./0.00 SF Existing 75,400 SF (56.47%) e Building Setback Line
1 . . )
- PoL-ave) Parking Setback Line
N/F EVB GRAVERS ROAD LLC @ o _ Udib
601 8 GRAVERS RD Township of Plymouth i 5 : T T T L £ U L Existing Soit Line
Doc ld#: Db. 5780, Pg. 1634 - R o e : 30'0'1”:-“35?"0“;_"”05!?{‘?”?;’;16 th _ SRR beos ¥ {JusB
Parcel Id#: 49-00-04508-00-5 ST S R T S S ee Drive, Township of Plymou ' TR isti
S " Doc Io# Db. 6089, Pg. 1009 Existing Edge of Paverment
RS IS A S Sy eyt Existing Ctssb
hg S . T “a Tt
% . 1 A s .4 7| Existing Concrete
8 &
4o ] Y
Soit gN :
L . : . . _ _ . o o s | R | Existing Asphalt Paving
x PR A L _ e S S _GRAVEE_;.AY_DOW L o N/F Plyrnouth Hospilafity LLC ek ; i
L : - - s f - AREA=T§350.8F - " 200 Lee Drive Township of Plymouth sa Existing Sanitary Sewer Line
q - SR ' Doc ld#: Db. 5763, Pg. 1817 w - .
Parcel Icf: 49-00-04509-02-3 Existing Water Line
: g Existing Gas Line
e 2" t Existing Phone Line
*
; % st Existing Storm Line
1 10.00" z 7 ohw Existing Qverhead Wire
' 1 X X Existing Fence
. m ——— 1 —— —— — — Existing Minor Contour
- : &E o ' T _— {5 ——————— Existing Major Contour
Soil NNV TV NN Existing Tree Line
Existing Tree w/ Caliper
BUILDING S8ETBACK LINE (BSL-TYF}
BRI — . : T FH Existing Fire Hydrant
+ I S S S S PO S QP Existing Utility Pole
// T o ) : : o .o 1e3000 0 - ' . N : - 2280 84 4t
o e Bgm e T T . - — - — - — - : - L R geon Existing Sigh
= 054" CHB N20M533E . . . - GATE e - PARKING SETBACK LINE (PSL-TYP) - o © GATE: ok O wv Existing Water Valve
o e= el S === = ———— —— - e
- LP Existing Light Standard
CHD 42.55' © D6
L ————PROPOSED ASPHALT in .
PAVING N Y, Existing Inlet
v — "
_ * SETHTAW_ * O mr Existing Manhole
‘“”‘Monb@t Fougd \ ) _)
R PR N { "'-1":"‘ 7 __.‘:_I ,; T A L e S A Comerets Sidewalk :“?_ X% 2.4 Proposed &' Chain Link Fence
1 ey 5 o) o - Proposed Guiderail
LEEDRIVE .|, Foed ol
o o
60" Right-of- Way (153015} - Private Street ~ ©
Proposed Gravel
I = W W) = . 7 S U - Proposed Curb
A VDY WY SN AT N ©® i/ AN B Y A . . .
>\ * i > > 3 s x ) d > * \\ \\ \ 4 L A > x ) e LA a7 .4 =l Proposed Concrete
\ \\J\j) ' \\J\/-) PROPOSED SIDEAL&‘@ZL%DEMENT \\-’\f)
PROPOSED CONCRETE PROPOSED CONCRETE TO NEAREST JOINT (TYR.AT ALL Monument Found
CURB CURB RAMPS) u
PROPOSED ADA RAMP PROPOSED ADA RAMP FPROPOSED CONCRETE
PROPOSED ASPHALT CURB
PROPOSED ASPHALT
PAVEMENT ADJUSTMENT PAVEMENT ADJUSTMENT PROPOSED ADA RAMP
PROPOSED STOP SIGN, PROPOSED STOP SIGN,
; PAINTED STOP BAR AND PAINTED STOP BAR AND
CROSSWALK CROSSWALK
PRGFPOSED ADA RAMP
PROPOSED CONCRETE
CURB
PROPOSFN SINFWAIL K
Site Plan
300 LEE DRIVE, PLYMOUTH MEETING, PA 19462
Serial Number: 20242211941
DRAWN BY
Act 287 GRAPHIC SCALE & E l ls I A‘ M
Act 287 PEOSTERED é CHECKED BY
AL PARTIES UTILIZING THIS PLAN AND THE INFORMATION CONTAWNED : PROFESSIONAL i ENGINEERS | LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS | SURVEYORS
THEREON ARE CAUTIONED TC COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE 15 30 MJE
PENNSYLVANIA ACT 287 AS AMENDED BY PENNSYLVANIA ACT 199, OF 2004 0 80 120 MARTIN J. EUSTACE, i} 607 Easton Road Tel: 52"5} 346-8757
ENTITLED "UNDERGROUND UTILITY LINE PROTECTION LAW. ALL EXISTING Sullding B - 2nd Floor o0 Pax: \219) 346 8759 | | DATE
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ARE TO BE CONSIDERED APPROXIMATE ONLY AND DRAWING SCALE:; 1"=30 a1 oW Srove. eusiaeeeng.com 04.11-2025
ARE TO 8E VERIFIED IN THE FIELD BY THE CONTRACTOR AND THE 04B691-£
APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANY PRIOR TO THE COMMENGEMENT OF THE DRAWING No
SITE WORK, [N ACCORDANCE WITH ACT 287. SHEET 2 OF 13 vace, I P& D 2444.01 02
BOFE -




live. work. play.
in Phymouth Tounship

Plymouth Crossing is a proposed live, work, and play community at the Conshohocken
Ridge Corporate Center that will include new upscale apartment living, retail and gro-
cery - all conveniently located within the property’s existing footprint. The plan offers the
township a viable strategy for repurposing vacant commercial properties as seen in the
55% vacancy rate at the Conshohocken Ridge Corporate Center.

By providing well-located housing with nearby conveniences, the development appeals to
both upwardly mobile young professionals and seniors seeking a more compact, accessi-
ble living environment. Since the transformed site will fall within the existing commercial
footprint, there will be minimal impact to traffic and local resources.

For more information visit PlymouthCrossing.com




Everything You Need,

quat A Few Steps Auay

Transforms Vacant Office Space

The Conshohocken Ridge Corporate Center
has a 55% vacancy rate. That's almost 100,000
square-feet of unused space that used to be
leased by businesses from all industries. The
proposed plan presents a chance to revitalize a
commercial space that was heavily affected by
the COVID-19 pandemic.

Supports Local Businesses

The mixed-use setting will support nearby
businesses by boosting foot traffic and making it
more attractive to recruit and retain employees.

Generates Economic Growth

The proposed plan will generate almost
$620,000 in net tax revenue annually for the
Colonial School District and Plymouth Township
- that's almost 10 times more than what's
currently generated from the site with minimal
impact to the school district and township.

Conveniently Located

The enhanced [-476 ramp will support the
walkable community by improving traffic flow
and accommodating the anticipated increase
in vehicle activity to and from the surrounding
area.

Trusted Development Team

BET Investments specializes in suburban mixed-
use developments that incorporate apartments
and retail space, achieving success for local

townships and residents across Montgomery SCAN OR VISIT

County. PlymouthCrossing.com

For more information visit PlymouthCrossing.com




-->LAYOUT: C-001 CNPT

R:\2024\PAA240108.00\CAD\DRAWINGS\CONCEPTS\CONCEPT PLAN 'A'\P-CPTA-PROP-PAA240108.00-1A---
SB

WEST RIDGE PIKE CONCEPT PLAN NOTES (Rev. 112020)

(A.K.A. RIDGE PIKE - L.R. 1010) THIS CONCEPT WAS PREPARED STRICTLY AND SOLELY BASED UPON INFORMATION IDENTIFIED IN THE PLAN REFERENCES.

-

(ARHBLE WDTH R.O.W,) 2. THE CONCEPT DEPICTED HEREIN IDENTIFIES A DESIGN CONCEPT RESULTING SOLELY FROM LAYOUT PREFERENCES AND GUIDANCE ES
“ ’\ ASPHALT ROADWAY) DICTATED AND IDENTIFIED SOLELY BY THE CLIENT. THE FEASIBILITY WITH RESPECT TO OBTAINING LOCAL, COUNTY, STATE, AND OTHER o 45
W (PUBLIC ROADWAY) APPLICABLE APPROVALS IS NOT WARRANTED, AND CAN ONLY BE ASSESSED AFTER FURTHER EXAMINATION AND VERIFICATION OF r4 E3
< o Yy APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS AND AFTER THE PROCUREMENT OF ALL NECESSARY JURISDICTIONAL APPROVALS. 4 £2
fv“- %&‘ 3. THIS CONCEPTUAL PLAN IS PREPARED FOR CONCEPTUAL PRESENTATION PURPOSES, ONLY, AND IS NOT INTENDED TO AND SHOULD NOT w 52
s 551" s 557544" S8 S 55°1344" E 5 SIDEWALK BE UTILIZED AS A ZONING OR CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT. Z g:J AR
2355 117.38' 2 CONC. MOW 279.90° FASEMENT 4. THE EXISTING CONDITIONS SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED UPON INFORMATION THAT WAS PROVIDED TO THE ENGINEER, AT THE TIME OF 0 E5.5n0|::
" p—— ' C UMD THE ENGINEER'S PREPARATION OF THIS CONCEPT PLAN, BY THE OWNER AND OTHERS NOT UNDER ENGINEER'S CONTROL, AND IS zZ WEGWS |a:
X o N - B l S S SUBJECT TO CHANGE AFTER PERFORMANCE OF ADDITIONAL DUE DILIGENCE, FIELD SURVEY OR BOTH. SERx25 |
X\ o ——— }:,& - | —— — = 5. ITIS STRONGLY RECOMMENDED THAT A ZONING CONFORMANCE ANALYSIS BE PERFORMED TO DETERMINE AND EVALUATE IF THERE 4 SOEWZ 0[5
\\/6 T S — 1 - —— ARE ANY RESTRICTIONS AND/OR ZONING ISSUES, CONCERNS OR RESTRICTIONS THAT MAY OR COULD IMPACT THE FEASIBILITY OF THIS EwITlw= |23
- ‘ - [ J | 1 H PROJECT, AS THE OWNER HAS DESCRIBED IT. 4228 Wwno|ig
‘ I M Ok |22
| & | ] A N | ROV PIPE 232<£ZE 22,
| IR N AT un FOUND S A E
| B u 323%3EL |t
W L — A P I ALLINE) SEVEACK VN _|_ PROPCROSSWALK _ 114 g<°‘0"5n. Zoo
£3 | M | - | | s z18a8&q |k
* & " S < Z (3%
65 e FIETS | ] e Biti
> i :} S | I~ | PARCEL #49-00~10535-00~4 | | = - F [5g
Z/;,i,* 4 PARCEL #49-00-10341-00-5 & | R e | LANDS W/F PARCEL #1000 et =004 S
20" reap o — g J . . 49-00-10336-00-1 | — e — & H FOWARD REFSE 1Y opRD e ) = 55
SETBACK | INE | = LANDS| WAF : — -4 N > 05 6719 F6 2677 DB 67179 PO 2677 7] iz
. | 14 ¢ ——penHODEy o 2l | ' ] I c H TRACT 1 [y £
% Dl 6997\ P6| 6 | | s A gz
B Ul R
SAB0F N 2 1 [ : : T Sl R _ 2=
5124159 -t « [ WANIVAN S| ® L—pr | 5 55°22'59" | 2
8 ) - | o€ - E E Ig g n L ““ / | 948.19° 10" BUFFER 5
-~ =
CONC. MON. -" = 20 e IR INE RO —de . I S T | o N\
FOUND ; ] . PR 5 W90 F 4 | @ : |
% — o — ——
/ 18 2 TYP | A CONC._MON: REVISIONS
) | F&U/W\L\%— _L A
/ D) ® | | M @Sﬁ ‘ —— +t DATE COMMENT DRAWN BY
|
- . | ] - | L [
’E;,’Zﬁj;‘ig. / - . “ /160 RETAIL SURFACE |zl | \ L*l I 03/28/2025 EE)T/I IC\:/ILEIEI'NI'T
A=16°39'02" / e N -p 6.8 PARKING SPACES I o I 1@ I l
CHB=SC4’Z;:)=313;?9'{IV' @ T$ . ‘92 l @ I ( h\\ PROP CROSSWALK g ;:amauiﬁ pr— ELTANELT] WY O T A o I l ‘ Loc A T’ o N M A P
6 727 & —_ ‘ | ‘ — | g - z \ ] %l 1 NOT TO SCALE
§ o o ' o | e 3 — & | H S 35°37'32" W SOURCE: GOOGLE MAP
I . N 181.56'
| 1 45 . R e /
\ : asl == G A
_ . Al I 3
oS 5 [ 18 , o A :
\ Vot i 2 - [%; SO I‘ % 10" SIDEWALK
| AL L £SUT,
o iy S
I0) N I I N Oy AREA CALCULATIONS
EE JRE d / ‘ S N |"i\4ﬂ’ BUFFER
W 18,779 SF RETAIL | |‘|_ — — 1t o ) || I\ o TOTAL TRACT AREA: (3 PARCELS) 16.126 Ac.
777777777777777 | st - ) O 1 | |
5.4 & C ; ON 17 FLOOR it . iy lg ) EXISTING BUILDING COVERAGE: TOTAL BUILDING AREA: 130,083 SF
3N 5 H I — EHT 1 e | COVERAGE: 18.52%
f?@ \\ S I ‘ . F ) — ey
) > | . s S s I 1/
3 \ g | | =+ K ) % o — 7% [ | 11 EXISTING IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE: 76.83% (12.389 Ac.)
2 = S . 18 F l [ P | ATTENTION ALL CONTRACTORS:
\\\ 1 _ I - | - R Lo .. i TP v37732" PROPOSED BUILDING COVERAGE: EXISTING REMAINING BUILDING: 74,055 SF LOCATIONS OF ALL EXISTNG
W ‘ - — | i - - } - - - - RN ﬁ—“‘:’ T ‘ 839?5’-‘: /S 3583;;2 w PROPOSED BUILDING: 85,045 SF BEEN DEVELOPED FROM UTILITY
N oq LIz A . / - . " COMPANY RECORDS AND/OR
’8L 5'53" W - | K || 4 | “QL | | ‘\ A | | .L J‘ ‘ Vs ‘ Ll e U + TOTAL BUILDING AREA: 159,100 SF ABOVE-GROUND INSPECTION OF THE
Se — / \ N / 8\ | Lo s b =W | . 0, SITE. COMPLETENESS OR
5?.," | ROOFTOP & I - \@}\ — PROP CROSSWALK — | S 35°40'03" W COVERAGE: 22.65% ACCURACY OF TYPE, SIZE, DEPTH
™ COURTYARD I NJ 7 ‘ ‘ 41.22' PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE 7861% (12677 AC) UNDERGROUND FACILITIES OR STRUCTURES CANNOT BE
— 4 AREA I : T ‘Qé; S E Dm E—Lm ) S0 W WS GUARANTEED. PURSUANT TO REQUIREMENTS OF
< , —— I ™) @ N -  — e R P =T 3504 AVEENDED BY ACT 50 OF 2017, CONTRACTORS MUST VERIFY
0 ~ oz °15'53" - ,
: ‘? {_dl'_]_dﬂ\i&_ | >/ - \ - -- -- LOCATION AND DEPTH OF ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AND
o Q [ & \\{55015' 53" 315.04' FACILITIES PRIOR TO START OF WORK.
E S | ~ 2% Y /— il o000
; - E e T e - A : 1 BN RUBEEEEEER
< —L = ) )L el LT A | FOR CONGEPT
U.IE H Ly PROPOSED 4-STORY RESIDENTIAL 1= - PROPCROSSﬁK | PURPOSES ONLY
@ _ o i ] (201 UNITS) ABOVE N ) s |
=23 gl Il || e FLOORRETAI & PARKING GARAGE ). R A e B = | TS T S SO A
< % S S Hi (15T LEVEL PARKING GARAGE - 111 PARKING SPACES) =2y ¢ @ " y ( u Hg‘ I DOCUMENT UNLESS INDICATED OTHERWISE.
nd ~ = w
N § 1 (2" LEVEL PARKING GARAGE - 155 PARKING SPACES) : g A - | ; HE‘ | m PROJECT No.: PAA240108.00-1A
|§ ES ' II (ON RAMP & WEST SIDE - 74 PARKING SPACES)’ @ - ; 1”18 DRAWN BY: LGU
3§ N | o : | 2 CHECKED BY: GJH
m 9 § S = ) 5 N PARCEL #4.00-02585.30.6 | DATE: 09/06/2024
— -00- -30- CAD I.D.: P-CPTA-PROP
! © : : : |3
S © 2 LANDS N/F
m = - S - o CONSHOWOCKEN TITLE HOLDER [LC l PROJECT:
Lu o s N DB 6097 PC 678 A | .
© il \ / S N
= e LU e e ; | i
e e ] - = E]
X Dol TATEN s ) | 133s8 CONCEPT
P | o o e e e sl e e e e s e e ) : / l | S
_ 52 — ) ﬁ ~J%. PLANS
~ i e Er i — o IR ITERE
X | oxk \ = - : 3
< ! 02 < : l l AR
< +— 23 i \ BN S FOR
T ¥ 1 | o : —wmo ] | |
A H— S | 1 /AN ~
Yy | g | l
Al — | el IR-ER BT PLYMOUTH, LLC
PROP. RETAINING 5 ‘ —] o ; 4 4 5
WALL (& 556 LF) S 5 ' T i | I | | ( ’
N = g
w N i B % ; |
S | @ o | " : I PROPOSED MIXED USE
E Ii H \ | ‘\ Il DEVELOPMENT
m 1% ( | EH |
Zt E - = ly " % N
N . =R
| S NN NN e . /] N I N 625 RIDGE PIKE
] i o] I . ‘EH Ll PYLMOUTH TOWNSHIP
_ —_ ‘ ‘ 4 = 4 4 Hg‘ | ‘g\\ ul MONTGOMERY COUNTY
- . . A L | M\‘J § A l ) y i COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
il > X PROP CROSSWALK H
” - o PARCEL #49-00-02585-00-3 | n |
@ © o LANDS NP | ‘\ [ |
& o -> < CONSHOMOCKEN TITLE HOLDER, L l N | H
AT NNNNVE-oY 122 ﬁ:fag/ s b — > | H | H
: . _) ’ T | ‘ }TI N 1600 MANOR DRIVE, SUITE 200
0t R R R N I R (-t ’
«/r\ I (7 l \;‘I o CHALFONT, PA 18914
cove._mow.~" | - W il ] Phone:  (215)996-9100
FOUND 2, o 1 [ )
- A S S S S L I R A— Fax.  (215)996-9102
. o\ | /10\ ol N §'f: ) Loal | 7| semmnon e www.BohlerEngineering.com
- /10N | /10 10\ DY - g
— FONIAN R b B N
/14\ N S R R R I R
WALN G.J. HARTMAN
20" REAR YARD o
SETBACK LINE — g B 0’ BUFFER
- PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER
1 PENNSYLVANIA LICENSE No. PE076453
1 NEW JERSEY LICENSE No. 24GE05345200
B | | | | | | | | A || \
EERRRERRRERRR R RN R REEE R
L || HEEEEEE NN LT |
- SHEET TITLE:
_o \N\ \ — = \% \ ) N L, - — - ‘
Hwsforarw |9 A I == S P T PLAN
¥ N ~ o R’ | N ~ 9 + R 4 + CONC. MON. n
SR < S S < S S SEEEE S FOUND | F
Q S S ~ ‘
. T VY I G ) T S I N I A P T I pAreEL 45 00-02557-00-1
N Q9 %) N = NS >~ =
S L Vet IR eaN Je2N Y eoBT R 2T DLEY ) SedY ) S le (YRSSe, St | SHEET NUMBER:
Py NI RN VXSo V880 R8s, OsE NS NIPE 7RISR AeSe ROBERT DISANTO |
S ES 1 4088 IS33%! g 59w Py P S T LoER O IIER 1 d o ¥g 18 g30g 1 1SEE DB 5790 PG 2244 |
AL RS S AT [S8sxh| OS2 T80 S QRTS | S&P%0 | S8~ PN (LSRRI S8y
RS SISV [SINTT] SIS |SSERTILSusS| SIS [ I3 | 2307 (8388 4§88 -
N S X\l%é ¥ NR & NS V\ILQ’QQQ ¥ IS NS Wi NN S RV ISR N XX e 50 25 125 0 50
i\ T8sy SSEN N gl D N | VU NTRERR| Y ¥ | NSy | o 8% |w S5 Wkg
3 $S.e | § 5|y 3 g 8|y § S . g g & ™y —
| ) NN Q < 3 Q N E\)&l ~ 3 N Q BN N {\1)
NN 3y N 5 N < S X < S 5 S SCALE: 1" = 50
N &m Se\ & 9 ~ AN N BN REVISION 1 - 03/28/2025
\ > \ \ [ [ \ [ \ | |



->LAYOUT: C-001 CNPT

R:\2024\PAA240108.00\CAD\DRAWINGS\EXHIBITS\EXHIBIT 'A"\P-EXHA-REND-PAA240108.00-1A----
SB

WE S ’ R I D G E PI K E CONCEPT PLAN NOTES (Rev. 1/2020)
o
(A.-K-A. RIDGE PIKE - L.R. 1010) 1. THIS CONCEPT WAS PREPARED STRICTLY AND SOLELY BASED UPON INFORMATION IDENTIFIED IN THE PLAN REFERENCES. 58
(ARKBLE WDTH R.OW,) 2. THE CONCEPT DEPICTED HEREIN IDENTIFIES A DESIGN CONCEPT RESULTING SOLELY FROM LAYOUT PREFERENCES AND GUIDANCE E2
“ ’_\ (ASPHALT ROADWAY) DICTATED AND IDENTIFIED SOLELY BY THE CLIENT. THE FEASIBILITY WITH RESPECT TO OBTAINING LOCAL, COUNTY, STATE, AND OTHER L) 48
(PUBLIC ROADHAY) APPLICABLE APPROVALS IS NOT WARRANTED, AND CAN ONLY BE ASSESSED AFTER FURTHER EXAMINATION AND VERIFICATION OF z E3
< 0 WAV APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS AND AFTER THE PROCUREMENT OF ALL NECESSARY JURISDICTIONAL APPROVALS. 4 22
%&‘ 3. THIS CONCEPTUAL PLAN IS PREPARED FOR CONCEPTUAL PRESENTATION PURPOSES, ONLY, AND IS NOT INTENDED TO AND SHOULD NOT w 52
—— o134 S 55°1344" E 5 SIDEWALK BE UTILIZED AS A ZONING OR CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT. Z L A EE
S 55°13'45 S 55°13°44 Z _x R ER
2356 117.38' CONC. WO 279.90° FASEMENT 4. THE EXISTING CONDITIONS SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED UPON INFORMATION THAT WAS PROVIDED TO THE ENGINEER, AT THE TIME OF 0O E35-0n0|:
, o A ' THE ENGINEER'S PREPARATION OF THIS CONCEPT PLAN, BY THE OWNER AND OTHERS NOT UNDER ENGINEER'S CONTROL, AND IS z WEows |a;
e oo N S/ A— JL S S SUBJECT TO CHANGE AFTER PERFORMANCE OF ADDITIONAL DUE DILIGENCE, FIELD SURVEY OR BOTH. S = Rl LE
X\ — - e —— ! 5. IT 1S STRONGLY RECOMMENDED THAT A ZONING CONFORMANCE ANALYSIS BE PERFORMED TO DETERMINE AND EVALUATE IF THERE 4 SOEWZ 0[5
\/% — f t - ARE ANY RESTRICTIONS AND/OR ZONING ISSUES, CONCERNS OR RESTRICTIONS THAT MAY OR COULD IMPACT THE FEASIBILITY OF THIS EwITlw= |23
‘ _ ° ° { . |> | PROJECT, AS THE OWNER HAS DESCRIBED IT. = > Z OU®Q |3
: : ‘ OF |23
g U e | ROV PIPE 232<£Z< 52,
° | FOUND SaSHZFE |ish
, — b 8 u 08 <3IEL |5z
w 19 o NG| SEVBALK LIV L PROP CROSSWALK 1 . o< oSG 228
og T —i T e i 03gRaz5 |
2. 1 RS | - Ve it
S - © ‘ | | =I o < 14 %g
NG = I I |x -00—- -00—- > -~ - |ie
1 1] | PARCEL f49-00-10355-00-4 | o o | = 5t
Z/;,«Z,L _ PARCEL #49-00-10341- | : < T R S LANDS W/F PARCEL #1500 254004 3 T
20" ReaR i —q fed . 49-00-10336-00 | = - — I | LOWARD REELSE, W FOWARD REESE, 1Y - 88
SETBACK LINE | = = LANOS| W | -l E— — a2 ' s vE 6119 e 2607 0B 6119 FE 2617 ® 25
; m I i e T PSR I B 5 e 1 a2
3 oR 6091\~ 6 I | GE B iz
w1 i JE o - N
" o —t= £
018'0 q J y I I% ?.n z
5724459 T « [ - TR B | 555°22'59" E | 2
8 o Q I °’i % U e I& = i “ \ \‘\‘ / [ 248.19" 70" BUFFER &
CONC. MON. - > 0 wor iR one Ros—Jde = : S | | L o \ IRON PIN
7
FOUND ] o 257 DB W4 : | | . FOUND
] % @0 LN 7 l — S
< > o DIE TYP A CONC_MON~—— X - - REVISIONS
oy — = —_— t ———
@ = _ [ o — — —— T@“ Tt | DATE COMMENT DRAVWN BY
u |
R=496.96' - - S S H . . . . . . . . 1 = PER CLIENT
| =144.42" f e o / | _ 06/19/2025| e
A=16°39'02" W N % i Y,
CHB=S 47°03'31" W TN PROP CROSSWALK 4 X “
CHD=143.91' T$P e /EL ELLIRE / DNREVd ON T 3u : \ 1 LOCA TION MAP
62 ut I— el |\ S F9 |9 \ NOT TO SCALE
' = * L ) N E . ' ‘ | -S35%3732" W SOURCE: GOOGLE MAP
: % , 181.56'
45' E - ‘ e an ————— | 3 /
: 20'A % g J ﬁ o W[
I I% K 10° SIDFWALK
an. ESHT,
= -
I AREA CALCULATIONS
5 - L 0 aurren
y e — _wmsowRy BuLome. = | TOTAL TRACT AREA: (3 PARCELS) 16.126 Ac.
i * ) | /\\ j: LLfL//////lJ/}///‘// 5 ’00 //”}L?/ ‘//: ﬂj, 2 ﬁj: S,/L, b L
S. I L , ¥ % EXISTING BUILDING COVERAGE: TOTAL BUILDING AREA: 130,083 SF
So . | z 3 =
f“ = Bl 2 ®_ | COVERAGE: 18.52%
] o | H g £
38 > | o % i% g
~ =) I | EXISTING IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE: 76.83% (12.389 Ac.)
4 k Gz) | ’ ‘» = —— = [ g F I /1/ ATTENTION ALL CONTRACTORS:
: C o | — / . . LOCATIONS OF ALL EXISTING
PN\ ) , < S 2 _ B ‘ /i it P < 3553732 W PROPOSED BUILDING COVERAGE: EXISTING REMAINING BUILDINGS: 99,405 SF LOCATIONS OF ALLEXISTNG
W - — i — A - — 839;5' 8.79' PROPOSED BUILDING: 23,600 SF BEEN DEVELOPED FROM UTILITY
°45'53" 3 . - COMPANY RECORDS AND/OR
=8L 5'53" W - J I ‘ ' ‘ “ I ' I ]7 1 I I L J ' ' I ' L TOTAL BUILDING AREA: 123,005 SF ABOVE-GROUND INSPECTION OF THE
- © ———— 7 < Lo 8 . SITE. COMPLETENESS OR
f;a; , 3 u PROP CROSSWALK T AN " COVERAGE: 17.51 % ACCURACY OF TYPE, SIZE, DEPTH
NM -> | S 35°40 0,3 w . 0 OR HORIZONTAL LOCATION OF
; 41.22 PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE: 78.61% (12.677 Ac.) UNDERGROUND FACILITIES OR STRUCTURES CANNOT BE
3 4' 7 ere GUARANTEED. PURSUANT TO REQUIREMENTS OF
0 . — T = —— - & ﬁl e gj == e L - olum:m L PENNSYLVANIA LEGISLATIVE ACT NUMBER 287 OF 1974 AS
N 2} / dn dAvY ] S Al T N 5°‘l5'5}" w [ . \ . ‘ﬁ5-04 b AMENDED BY ACT 50 OF 2017, CONTRACTORS MUST VERIFY
~ Al ———— 3 - - - LOCATION AND DEPTH OF ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AND
o a @\l e§ \S 55°15'53" El!\_/ \_/ S \__d15.04' ! \ FACILITIES PRIOR TO START OF WORK.
S — \ 7 ol | | WWW.PA1CALL.ORG
N N R P S S S B T AXO0NOKX
— — v F | y
: - ] - | g | N
<t “ : 1 4/ : i | FOR CONCEPT
N | — PROPOSED 4-STORY RESIDENTIAL SEE- HJ L E L 8
m a . | Vot (201 UNITS) ABOVE = \N\N B PROP CROSSWALK | ] b PURPOSES ONLY
w > 8 P [T st ® 20" WIDE WATER LINE ROW. ] IEH 7 | THIS DRAWING IS INTENDED FOR MUNICIPAL AND/OR AGENCY
h g:. § b %‘” = | 1> FLOOR RETAIL & PARKING GARAGE 0t PER DB 4929 P6 2279 T 3 |§H | | REVIEW AND APPROVAL. [T IS NOT INTENDED AS A CONSTRUCTION
X < ® il (157 LEVEL PARKING GARAGE - 111 PARKING SPACES) T & | ‘ ‘ 0| DOCUMENTUNLESS hoCATe oT e
nd w —f
< S | (2" LEVEL PARKING GARAGE - 155 PARKING SPACES) : £ | Lu PROJECT No PAA40108 00-1 A
h 'E X 1 (ON RAMP & WEST SIDE - 74 PARKING SPACES) - g 4| DRAWN BY: CRS
S § I 2 g ¢ | | 2 CHECKED BY: TK
[STR | — % .- DATE: 06/11/2025
o H
m aS T — PARCEL #49-00-02585-30-9 1| @S < CADLD.: P-EXHA-REND
= & LANDS N/ | |
S | = CONSHOWOCKEN THTLE HOLDER, [LC I , PROJECT:
. g ap | | ~ .
© R 6097 PG 6758 ” I 1] N
= e 1 l L
2 R : iR ~J:38
. ] 3 £ a0 | | NS
2 LI e | 33388 T CONCEPT
v i : : ||| &5 S
< A = 12 L /ug | = ﬁ' ” mﬁ §.§ PLANS
\ > (> g N = ] U
— " = ° = = A‘\"}/ § 33 N
. ’ I e l =" ‘\ e XY &
< [ RN s
+— 4 1 | | - FOR
j 2 P = N | - \
- N ‘l’
W L l gl &8 é; \ Ja
AR — | R ~ Al ML BT PLYMOUTH, LLC
PROP. RETAINING s : — . g [ N — —] — ~L
WALL (% 556 LF) R 5 1 STORY [ S aApy | | 2 <
y s WASONRY BUILOIVG E g | O N Q N z
— SUILOING  FOOTEPRINI =25, b St ‘n 7 i % % z L\Wé -
: ‘l—:f LUILDING  FOOTFRINV 65,5554 S.F (] . . Hg l 1’%‘}‘/‘ ‘ % 0
?"'2 73( — & o H ;‘§ ] ﬂ ﬂ » «— PROPOSED MIXED USE
N\ AT 75
5 = : I o | " o 2 : - \ DEVELOPMENT
2 || 2 | Bl A H " L 1T 1 a N
/| B - | ) = «
N < 33 - : & | | 0 " 625 RIDGE PIKE
| i o) | I ol ! s > PYLMOUTH TOWNSHIP
| | | i K » J MONTGOMERY COUNTY
. - 2 . § . e | COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
Y™
| NS \/ PROP CROSSWALK el | | !
S PARCEL #49-00-02585-00-3 =l
lo LANDS N/F ]
= CONSHOHOCKEN TITLE HOLOER, 11C ey | |
i ; 2 i LY c— e I :
) > C_ o ) 1 (
’ |I’i/A\ N -5 \L ¢ 1600 MANOR DRIVE, SUITE 200
N S &!!§'£;= || JL H CHALFONT, PA 18914
cone._ ol _ _— _— 4. 5 T T ' Phone:  (215) 996-9100
FOUND chep ﬁ? Fax: (215) 996-9102
— — T — T — SO |0 FRONT ARD -8 ; ) )
S R - N | sernck ine u www.BohlerEngineering.com
&)
I — — — u R . , . . . G.J. HARTMAN
B — T T T | |
20° REAR YARD
SETBACK LINE — g P 0’ BUFFER ) : ; ; : ; -
| PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER
H PENNSYLVANIA LICENSE No. PE076453
|| S NEW JERSEY LICENSE No. 24GE05345200
L ] ],_‘ & &« “_‘[
[l %}
IL H M A = = "
2 SHEET TITLE:
™
| ‘9
e U
| Te
(. n
i W c it RENDERING
1RON PV — M s w S ‘ 7 N B R ‘ SEE 1ST FLOOR PARKING GARAGE 2ND FLOOR PARKING GARAGE
o \ 3 N ol . y szsoz| 1 N 543444 w\\\ . N 315.00 h EXHIBIT
<& | \ YO GUHTER | N ! \ 4 = N h CoNe: mon. ] SCALE: 1" = 50' SCALE: 1" = 50'
S Ny S S S SEEN S S S IO FOUND n
‘ @ j w N \ N FARCEL #49-00-02587-00~7 a
iy S S38's v 8l g ZRIN oSy o500 R BBy RRIR B ISeeIRl g §n Lonss i |
| R A N N N R L N N T e N N N R S N I S NN ROBERT DISANTO SHEET NUMBER:
L & BR 0 TSR T S35 TS0 TSSO VS8 Yo%e ) YS8e 130T (o380 Y88 08 5790 P 2244 | ‘
\ 5 S AS NI S Lo NN S SRR RS AN LS
N SQTITD [ NS QY SLLLIS LNV | S&Y SR SWS (IS TR |
NANES PLER |D 9 QIR (DTG (S8 SIS SN T NS SURXR | S N
TSR SILoN [SISTD] S3WE (LSRRI SIEY | LY | 9IS° (R IE0)] L4588 -
N NI X\l%\l ¥ N & © I N9 w\‘m’gw I NS Wi NEENIRNEN S RV N XS Q N XX e 50 25 125 0 50
\ %%V(\\ %i% A N AN NI RS N S %%Qq RN S Sy g% %Q < QR \\‘%%
! N ~ ~ Q N S N QL Q ~ 3
NN N3y N 5 N < S 3 < 3 Q S SCALE: 1" = 50
N &m S\ & 9 ~ AN N Q REVISION 1 - 06/19/2025
| < \ ‘ !



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS
Conshohocken Ridge Development
Plymouth Township, Montgomery County

March 23, 2024

Prepared for:
BET Investments

Prepared by:

David C. Babbitt, AICP
David C. Babbitt & Associates, LLC
P.O. Box 922
Frazer, PA 19355-0922
610-651-5717
www.babbittplanning.com
david@babbittplanning.com




Fiscal Impact Analysis

Conshohocken Ridge Development

Plymouth Township, Montgomery County
March 23, 2024

This report examines the annual fiscal impact to Plymouth Township and the Colonial School District
(CSD) of the Conshohocken Ridge Development proposed by BET Investments. The report examines the
fiscal impact to the Township and School District during any given year after the completion of the
proposed project and full occupancy, based on 2024 levels of revenue, expenditures, and taxation.

The proposed development consists of the following elements:
* 120 one bedroom apartments, to be rented for an average of $2,000 per month.
+ 81 two bedroom apartments, to be rented for an average of $3,000 per month.

* 18,641 square feet of retail commercial development, on the ground floor of the proposed apartment

building.

* 261 structured parking spaces. The remaining parking is proposed to be surface parking.

The proposed development scenario of 201 rental apartments, 18,641 square feet of retail commercial
development, and 261 structured parking spaces will be measured against the impacts of the existing
vacant 50,190 square foot office building with an assessed value of $2,714,918.

At buildout and full occupancy, the proposed apartment development is projected to generate $26,935,179
of assessed value, which represents 1.5 percent of the total assessed value of all properties in the
Township, and 0.6 percent of the total assessed value of all properties in the School District. At full
occupancy, the proposed development is projected to house 305 persons, including 13 school age children

(ages 5-17) of whom 12 are projected to attend public (CSD) schools, and 93 workers.

The table below shows the annual net fiscal impact (revenue minus expenditures) to the Township and
School District of each element of the proposed development and the existing vacant office building.
Below the table are sections on demographics, assessments, Township expenditures and revenue, and
School District expenditures and revenue. At the end of this report are the spreadsheets for the Township
and School District impact, which show the major expenditure and revenue categories for each entity. All
cell addresses in the text refer to these spreadsheets.

Proposed Number Annual Annual Net Annual Annual Net
Dwelling of Units/ Net School Net Combined Impact
Type/ SF/ Township District Combined per Unit/
Use Spaces Impact Impact Impact 1K SF / Space
1 BR Rental Apartment 120 $75,001 $269,821 $344,822 $2,874

2 BR Rental Apartment 81 $65,601 $151,134 $216,735 $2,676
Retail Commercial 18,641 $6,675 $56,159 $62,834 $3,371
Structured Parking 261 $6,940 $57,322 $64,261 $246
Total Proposed 201 | $154,217 | $534,437 | $688,653

Existing Vacant Office 50,190 $243 $68,074 $68,317 $1,361
Difference $153,974 $466,362 $620,336




Conshohocken Ridge Fiscal Impact Analysis -2- March 23, 2024

The annual net fiscal impact of the proposed apartments is projected to be favorable for the Township and
School District, creating annual net surpluses for each entity. The annual net combined fiscal impact
for the proposed Conshohocken Ridge Development is projected to total positive (or surplus)
$688,653. The annual combined revenue is projected to exceed the annual combined expenditures by
268.9 percent.

By contrast, the annual net fiscal impact of the existing vacant office building is projected to be
approximately break even for the Township and moderately favorable to the School District. The annual
net combined fiscal impact of the existing office building is projected to be positive (or surplus) $68,317
per year. The difference between the annual net combined impacts of the proposed development and the
existing vacant office building is projected to be $620,336. In other words, the annual combined surplus of
the proposed development is projected to be approximately 10 times that of the existing office building.

There are three important reasons for the positive annual net fiscal impacts projected for the proposed
development:

* First, the proposed development is comprised of smaller apartment units, which house fewer persons and
far fewer school age children than single family detached dwellings, the predominant dwelling type in
the Township. The lower number of persons and school age children result in lower expenditures for the
Township and School District, which lead to annual surpluses for each entity.

» Second, the proposed apartments are proposed to be high end and will generate higher revenue in the real
estate tax and earned income tax categories than many of the existing apartments in the Township.

* Third, the proposed retail commercial development and structured parking add very low Township
expenditures and no School District expenditures at all, but generate considerable revenue to both
entities.

The combination of lower expenditures and higher revenue results in annual surpluses to the Township and
School District from the proposed development.

Demographics

The number of persons per unit is projected to be 1.36 for all one bedroom apartments and 1.75 for all two
bedroom apartments (cells E6-E7). These demographic multipliers are from Residential Demographic
Multipliers — Estimates of the Occupants of New Housing, by Robert W. Burchell, David Listokin, and
William Dolphin of the Rutgers University Center for Urban Policy Research (CUPR), published in June,
2006. These multipliers are based on the U.S. Bureau of the Census 2000 Public Use Microdata Sample,
and are specific to each dwelling type, size, rent and state. The Rutgers CUPR (the group that developed
the fiscal impact analysis methodology) examined housing built between 1990 and 2000 specifically in
Pennsylvania, and determined the demographic multipliers for a variety of dwelling types (detached,
attached, multifamily, etc.), size (in number of bedrooms), and value or monthly rent. The multipliers in
this analysis are for the highest rent level for each dwelling type. The number of persons projected to
reside in the proposed development is determined by multiplying the number of units (totaling 201, cells
B6-B8) by the number of persons per unit for each dwelling type. The number of persons projected to
reside in the proposed development at buildout and full occupancy totals 305 (cells F6-F8).

The number of workers per thousand square feet at the proposed retail commercial development is
projected to be 5.00 (cell E8). This figure is based on Who Lives in New Jersey Housing? New Jersey
Demographic Multipliers, by the CUPR, published in November, 2006. In addition to the residential
demographic multipliers specific to New Jersey (which were not used in this analysis — see above for the



Conshohocken Ridge Fiscal Impact Analysis -3- March 23, 2024

source of the Pennsylvania multipliers used in this analysis), this CUPR document also includes
nonresidential multipliers from nationwide studies. The figure of 5.00 per thousand square feet reflects the
smaller retail entities in the proposed development. Larger stores (including “big box” stores) tend to have
fewer workers per thousand square feet. The number of workers projected to work in the proposed retail
commercial development is determined by multiplying the number of square feet (18,641, cell B8) by the
number of workers per thousand square feet (5.00, cell E8). The number of workers projected to work in
the proposed retail commercial development at buildout and full occupancy totals 93 (cell F8). Please note
that these figures represent the number of full time equivalent positions, not the number of employees.
Given part time positions and turnover within positions, the number of employees for each use is likely to
be higher. No workers are projected for the proposed structured parking, and the existing vacant office
building has 0 workers (cells F9 and F11).

The prospective workers at the proposed retail commercial development are projected to be engaged in the
following positions, shown in the table below with their respective average annual salaries.

Position % of Average Annual
Workers Salary
Retail Sales Workers 90% $34,650
First Line Supervisors of Retail Sales Workers 10% $53,070
TOTALS 100% $36,492

The source of the average annual salaries is the Pennsylvania Metropolitan Area Employment and Wage
Estimates, prepared by the Bureau of Labor Statistics, U. S. Department of Labor, in May, 2022 (the most
recent data available). The weighted average annual salary of all positions is projected to be $36,492 (cell
137).

The number of school age children per unit is projected to be 0.05 for all one bedroom apartments and 0.09
for all two bedroom apartments (cells E48-E49 of the School District spreadsheet). These demographic
multipliers are also for the highest rent level for each dwelling type, and are from the Rutgers CUPR study
for Pennsylvania. The number of public school students is determined by multiplying the number of units
(totaling 201, cells B48-B49) by the number of school age children per unit in each category, and by 87.0
percent (cell D78), which is the percentage of school age children in Plymouth Township attending public
schools, according to the 2022 American Community Survey, a function of the U.S. Census Bureau, which
reported 2,217 public school students out of 2,549 school age children. The remaining school age children
are projected to attend private school or be schooled at home. The number of public school students
projected to reside in the proposed development at buildout and full occupancy totals 12 (cells F48-F49).

No school age children or public school students are projected to be generated by the proposed retail
commercial development or structured parking, or the existing vacant office development (cells F50-F53).

Assessments

The projected assessed value of the proposed rental apartments is based on nine comparable apartment
complexes constructed since 2014, as shown in the table below with data from the County Board of
Assessment database. The first is in Whitemarsh Township, the second is in Plymouth Township, and the
remainder are in Upper Merion Township.



Conshohocken Ridge Fiscal Impact Analysis -4- March 23, 2024

Name Address Built Assessment Units per Unit

Court at Spring Mill 1101-1151 Hector Street | 2014 $46,221,840 385 $120,057
Parc Plymouth Meeting 134 Plymouth Road 2015 $38,137,200 398 $95,822

Indigo 301 301 Village Drive 2016 $41,491,240 363 $114,301
The Hanover Apartments 300 Village Drive 2017 $38,436,220 339 $113,381
Canvas Valley Forge 101 Bryce Lane 2017 $26,673,640 231 $115,470
AVE Apartments 555 S. Goddard Blvd. | 2018 $31,185,220 273 $114,232
Hanover Apartments II 625 S. Goddard Blvd. | 2018 $38,927,960 339 $114,832
The Smith at Valley Forge | 580 S. Goddard Blvd. | 2018 $36,216,700 320 $113,177
Building 1000 751 Vandenburg Road | 2018 $34,665,730 314 $110,400
TOTALS $331,955,750 2,962 $112,071

The average assessment of these 2,962 units is $112,071. The proposed one bedroom units are projected
to average $109,071 (cell C6), which is the average assessment minus $3,000. The proposed two bedroom
units are projected to average $115,071 (cell C7), which is the average assessment plus $3,000. The
assessed value of the proposed development is determined by multiplying the number of units (totaling
201, cells B6-B8) by the assessed value for each dwelling type (cells C6-C7). The assessed value of the
proposed apartments is projected to total $22,409,369 (cells D6-DS).

The projected assessed value of the proposed retail commercial development is based on four comparable
developments constructed since 2008, as shown in the table below with data from the County Board of
Assessment database. All are in Plymouth Township, on Ridge Pike and Germantown Pike.

Name Address Built [ Building Assessment SF | per SF

McDonald’s 213 Ridge Pike 2008 $546,170 3,921 | $139.29
Key Bank 101 Ridge Pike 2008 $424.250 3,327 [ $127.52
Wawa 1300 E. Ridge Pike 2017 $593,650 5,084 | $116.77
Mission BBQ/Vision Works |615 W. Germantown Pike | 2017 $699,200 6,505 [$107.49
TOTALS $2,263,270 18,837 | $120.15

The assessed value (for the buildings only) of these four existing developments averages $120.15 per
square foot (cell C8). This figure is applied to the number of square feet of proposed retail commercial
development (18,641, cell BS). The assessed value of the proposed retail commercial development is
determined by multiplying the number of square feet (18,641, cell B8) by the assessed value per square
foot ($120.15, cell C8). The assessed value of the proposed retail commercial development is projected to
total $2,239,721 (cell DS8).

The projected assessed value of the proposed structured parking is based on two comparable structured
parking garages constructed since 2008, as shown in the table below with data from the County Board of
Assessment database. Both garages are in Norristown Borough, and the assessed value reflects the
buildings only, and excludes the land value.



Conshohocken Ridge Fiscal Impact Analysis -5- March 23, 2024

Name Address Built | Bldg. Assmnt. | Spaces [ per Space
SEPTA Transportation Center | 40 E. Lafayette Street | 2008 $4,329,570 500 $8.659
Cherry Street Garage 101 W. Main Street | 2008 $4,280,490 483 $8,862
TOTALS $8,610,060 983 $8,759

The assessed value (for the buildings only) of these two existing structured parking garages averages
$8,759 per space (cell C9). The assessed value of the proposed structured parking is determined by
multiplying the number of spaces (261, cell B9) by the assessed value per space ($8,759, cell C9). The
assessed value of the proposed structured parking is projected to total $2,286,089 (cell D9).

The assessed value of the entire proposed development is projected to total $26,935,179 (cells D6-D10).
This projected assessed value represents 1.5 percent of the total assessed value of all properties in the
Township ($1,811,825,953, according to the Montgomery County Board of Assessment Land Use
Classification Report of January 4, 2024), and 0.6 percent of the total assessed value of all properties in
the School District ($4,426,842,852, according to the 2023-2024 CSD budget).

The assessed value of the existing vacant office development is $2,714,918 (cell D11), which translates to
$54.09 per square foot (cell C11). The difference in assessed value between the proposed development
and the existing vacant office building is $24,220,261 (cell D12).

Please note that the actual assessments will be applied by the Montgomery County Board of Assessment
only after the proposed development is constructed and inspected.

Annual Township Expenditures

Annual Township expenditures are determined in two ways. The residential expenditures are determined
using the per capita multiplier method, by multiplying the projected number of residents in the proposed
development (totaling 305, cells F6-F7) by the existing Township per capita operating expenditures of
$254.29 (cell D41). The per capita operating expenditures are determined by estimating the proportion of
existing Township operating expenditures applied to existing Township residential development, and
dividing by the existing Township population. The nonresidential expenditures are determined using the
proportional valuation method, based on the assessed value of the existing vacant office building.

The Township’s adopted 2024 budget includes the following eleven funds, shown in the table below with
their respective expenditures:

Fund Budgeted Expenditure
General Fund $25,349,695
Health and Welfare Fund $4,953,135
Sewer Fund $8,436,532
Community Center Fund $2,339,390
Capital Reserve Fund $6,760,000
GPCC Capital Fund $2,251,400
Act 209 Area 1 Fund $0
Act 209 Area 2 Fund $0




Conshohocken Ridge Fiscal Impact Analysis -6- March 23, 2024

Fund Budgeted Expenditure
Stormwater Outfall Fund $0
Recreation Impact Fee Fund $220,000
Highway Aid Fund $531,000
Total $50,841,152

The total Township budgeted expenditures in 2024 are $50,841,152. However, this analysis focuses on
annual operating expenditures only, and therefore includes only the following three operating funds,
totaling $30,833,830 (cell D36) and shown in the table below with their respective sums in the 2024
budget:

Fund Budgeted Expenditure
General Fund $25,349,695
Health and Welfare Fund $4,953,135
Highway Aid Fund $531,000
Total $30,833,830

The other funds are excluded from this analysis, for the following reasons. The Sewer Fund and
Community Center Fund are proprietary funds, using fees (such as sewer rents and connection fees, and
community center program revenue) to fund operations. The Capital Reserve Fund and GPCC Capital
Fund use revenue from grants, transfers from the General Fund, and forwarded fund balances from
previous years to fund capital expenditures such as building improvements, not operating expenditures.
The Act 209 Funds are capital funds to distribute transportation impact fees, and the Stormwater Outfall
Fund has no expenditures for 2024.

Four categories of funds are subtracted from the total expenditures of $30,833,830 (cell D36) in order to
find a more accurate measure of the average annual expenditures for the proposed development and
existing vacant office building. The first category is pass-through funds, which are excluded because the
proposed development will have no net impact on these funds, since revenue always equals expenditures.
Pass-through funds that are excluded are as follows, shown here with their respective sums in the
Township’s 2024 budget:

Pass-Through Fund Fund Budgeted Amount
Liquor License General Fund $9,000
State Firemen Relief General Fund $195,009
State Act 101 Recycling Grant General Fund $85,000
State Grant General Fund $15,000
State Public Utility Grant General Fund $21,500
State Pension Aid General Fund $792,609
Recycling Miscellaneous Revenue General Fund $2,000
Reimbursable Services General Fund $449,000
Recreation Fees General Fund $289,600




Conshohocken Ridge Fiscal Impact Analysis -7- March 23, 2024
Pass-Through Fund Fund Budgeted Amount
Contributions Retiree Health and Welfare Fund $25,000
Contributions Police Health and Welfare Fund $57,000
Contributions COBRA Health and Welfare Fund $15,000
Contributions Active Employees Health and Welfare Fund $105,000
Total $2,060,718

The excluded pass-through funds total $2,060,718. Please note that just as the expenditures for the above
pass-through funds are not included in the per capita expenditure calculations of this section, the revenue
from these sources is also not included in the revenue analysis, below.

Another pass-through category is charges related to the processing and administration of proposed
subdivisions and land developments in the Township, shown in the table below with their respective sums
in the Township’s 2024 budget, all in the General Fund.

Development Related Expenditures Budgeted Amount
Electrical Permits $190,000
Sign Permits $36,000
Demolition Permits $5,000
Grading Permits $1,500
Improvement Permits $570,000
Mechanical Permits $150,000
Plumbing Permits - Master PLB $15,000
Plumbing Permits $85,000
Street-Road Permits $7,500
Zoning Hearing Applications $20,000
Total $1,080,000

Such charges for services and departmental earnings are excluded because they are in essence one-time
pass-through funds for specific functions normally associated with new development. For example, the
Township is budgeted to receive $570,000 in improvement permit fees, which will be expended on the
building inspections and the administration of those permits while a development is under construction,
not on other functions associated with the time after a development is completed. Once a development is
completed, the revenue and expenditures for such permits and application fees decreases significantly, but
not completely.

The development related expenditures total $1,080,000. Only 90 percent of the development related funds
(or $972,000) is excluded from the expenditure analysis, in acknowledgment that there will still be some
expenditures on buildings once they are complete, for building additions, inspections for violations,
ongoing permits, etc. Please note that in the revenue analysis, below, only 10 percent of the revenue from
development related funds (or $108,000) is included in the category of miscellaneous revenue.

The third category of excluded funds includes expenditures for solid waste disposal and road maintenance,
based on the assumption that the Township will not incur any solid waste expenditures and no new



Conshohocken Ridge Fiscal Impact Analysis -8- March 23, 2024

Township roads will be created as part of the proposed development or the existing vacant office building.
Solid waste disposal is to be handled privately for all uses. All the roads surrounding the site have existed
for years, and since the Township has been expending funds to maintain those roads under its jurisdiction
(i.e., local roads, excluding county and PennDOT roads) for that time, such expenditures are not likely to
rise with the proposed development. Further, the Township will not expend funds on leaf collection or
composting with the proposed development or the existing vacant office building. The sanitation and road
maintenance expenditures total $2,666,210 and are shown in the table below with their respective sums in
the 2024 budget.

Excluded Expenditures Fund Budgeted Amount
Sanitation General Fund $1,374,860
Road & Bridge Maintenance General Fund $97,000
Storm Sewer Maintenance General Fund $33,000
Street Signs & Markings General Fund $1,850
Street Cleaning General Fund $5,750
Snow & Ice Removal General Fund $5,500
Street Lights General Fund $290,000
Branch Pickup & Chipping General Fund $12,000
Leaf Collection General Fund $40,000
Composting General Fund $47,000
4 of Maintenance & Repair Vehicles General Fund $65,500
¥, of Maint. & Repair PW Equipment General Fund $162,750
All Highway Aid Fund Expenditures Highway Aid Fund $531,000
Total $2,666,210

Please note that the excluded road maintenance expenditures do not include the other funds budgeted for
public works in the General Fund. These expenditures are included in this analysis. Also, please note that
the reason why the $476,775 in state liquid fuels grants to the Highway Aid Fund are not excluded as pass-
through funds, above, is because $531,000 is excluded as road maintenance expenditures.

The final category of excluded funds is interfund transfers, for two reasons. The interfund transfers
between two funds that are both included in this analysis are excluded in order to avoid double counting
the same money as expenditures in both funds. Such interfund transfers include $4,191,500 from the
General Fund to the Health and Welfare Fund, which are both operating funds included in this analysis.
The transfer of $268,466 from the Sewer Fund to the General Fund is excluded, representing
reimbursement to the Township for the administrative costs of operating the Sewer Fund, an excluded
proprietary fund. And the General Fund transfers to the GPCC Capital and Capital Reserve Funds are for
capital and not operating expenditures. The interfund transfers total $14,631,415 and are shown in the
table below with their respective sums in the 2024 budget.

Source Fund Destination Fund Budgeted Amount
General Fund Health and Welfare Fund $4,748,135
General Fund Sewer Operating Fund $1,583,280




Conshohocken Ridge Fiscal Impact Analysis -9- March 23, 2024

Source Fund Destination Fund Budgeted Amount
General Fund Comm. Ctr. Operating Fund $800,000
General Fund GPCC Capital Fund $2.250,000
General Fund Capital Reserve Fund $2,250,000
General Fund Capital Projects Fund $3,000,000
TOTAL $14,631,415

Please note that the transfer of funds between the General Fund and the Sewer Fund is $2,000,000 minus
the $416,720 transfer between the Sewer Fund and the General Fund. The net transfer is $1,583,280,
shown in the table above.

The excluded funds, including pass-through funds, excluded development related funds, sanitation and
road maintenance expenditures, and interfund transfers, total $20,330,343 (cell D37). The 2024 Township
operating expenditures minus the pass-through funds, development related expenditures, sanitation and
road maintenance expenditures and excluded interfund transfers total $10,503,487 (cell D38).

Then, the Township expenditures associated with existing nonresidential development are subtracted from
the net operating expenditures using the “proportional valuation method” of The New Practitioner's Guide
to Fiscal Impact Analysis. First, a portion of the total Township expenditures is assigned to existing
nonresidential development, based on the average value of property. According to the Montgomery
County Board of Assessment Land Use Classification Report as of January 4, 2024 (the most recent
available), the total assessed value of the 6,469 properties in Plymouth Township was $1,811,825,953,
yielding an average assessed value of $280,078. Of those properties, 657 are nonresidential (commercial,
industrial, institutional, utility, etc., whether taxable or exempt), with a total assessed value of
$825,776,376 (representing 45.6 percent of the Township total), and an average assessed value of
$1,256,889. The proportion of average nonresidential assessed value to average Township assessed value
(residential and nonresidential combined) is 4.49, which is then used to determine the refinement
coefficient of 1.21 from a graph in the New Practitioner’s Guide to Fiscal Impact Analysis, also by Robert
W. Burchell, David Listokin, and William Dolphin of the Rutgers University Center for Urban Policy
Research (1985). The refinement coefficient is based on empirical research by the Rutgers University
CUPR, and is necessary to adjust the costs of existing nonresidential development in communities without
extensive nonresidential development of very high average assessed value, such as Plymouth Township.
By comparison, in communities where the ratio between the average nonresidential assessment and the
average overall assessment is above 6, an economy of scale reduces the nonresidential expenditures on a
per square foot basis, and the refinement coefficient is below 1.00.

The proportion of Township assessed value in nonresidential uses (45.6 percent) is then multiplied by the
refinement coefficient of 1.21, and by the 2024 net Township operating expenditures ($10,503,487, cell
D38). The result of this calculation is that $5,792,484 of the net Township operating expenditures
(representing 55.1 percent) is attributable to existing nonresidential development (cell D39). This sum is
subtracted from the net Township operating expenditures ($10,503,487, cell D38), and the remainder
($4,711,003 in expenditures attributable to existing residential development) is divided by the estimated
number of Township residents in 2024, which is 18,526 (cell D40). The 2024 estimated population is
derived by taking the 2022 U.S. Census Bureau American Community Survey estimate of 18,391 and
adding two years worth of the average annual increase between the 2020 decennial Census and 2022 (135
during those two years, or 67.5 per year, or 135 between 2022 and 2024) to reach the 2024 estimate of
18,526. The 2024 Township per capita operating expenditures attributable to existing residential
development are $254.29 (cell D41).



Conshohocken Ridge Fiscal Impact Analysis -10- March 23, 2024

The 2024 Township per capita operating expenditures of $254.29 (cell D41) are then applied to the
projected number of residents of the proposed development at buildout and full occupancy (totaling 305,
cells F6-F7) to find the annual projected Township operating expenditures for the proposed residential
development of $77,546 (cells G6-G7). The annual Township operating expenditure per unit is projected
to be $346 for the one bedroom apartments and $445 for the two bedroom apartments (cells H6-H7).

The annual Township expenditures associated with the proposed retail commercial development are also
determined using the proportional valuation method. The proposed retail commercial development has a
projected assessed value of $2,239,721 (cell D8) which is 0.3 percent of the assessed value of all 657
existing nonresidential properties in the Township (which is $825,776,376). The ratio of the assessed
value of the proposed retail commercial development($2,239,721) to the average assessed value of all
existing nonresidential properties in the Township ($1,256,889) is 1.78 which is used to determine a
refinement coefficient of 0.92 from a different line on the same graph in the Guide. Then, the proportion
of retail commercial assessed value to existing overall nonresidential assessed value (0.3 percent) is
multiplied by the refinement coefficient of 0.92 and by the 2024 Township operating expenditures
attributable to existing nonresidential development ($5,792,484, cell D39). The result of this calculation is
that the proposed retail commercial development is projected to generate $14,454 in annual Township
expenditures (cell G8), or $775 per 1,000 square feet of development (cell H11).

No annual Township expenditures are projected from the proposed structured parking (cell G9). Instead,
all Township expenditures are associated with the primary uses the structured parking is intended to serve
(i.e., the residential and retail commercial development). The total annual Township expenditures from the
proposed development are projected to be $92,000 (cells G6-G10).

The annual Township expenditures associated with the existing vacant office development are also
determined using the proportional valuation method. The existing office development has an assessed
value of $2,714,918 (cell D11) which is 0.3 percent of the assessed value of all 657 existing nonresidential
properties in the Township (which is $825,776,376). The ratio of the assessed value of the existing office
development ($2,714,918) to the average assessed value of all existing nonresidential properties in the
Township ($1,256,889) is 2.16 which is used to determine a refinement coefficient of 0.84 from the
incremental nonresidential assessment line on the same graph in the Guide. Then, the proportion of office
building assessed value to existing overall nonresidential assessed value (0.3 percent) is multiplied by the
refinement coefficient of 0.84 and by the 2024 Township operating expenditures attributable to existing
nonresidential development ($5,792,484, cell D39). This product is then reduced by 50 percent to reflect
the fact that the existing office building is vacant. The Township will still expend funds on police
protection, fire protection, code enforcement, etc., but the expenditures will be reduced significantly. The
result of this calculation is that the existing vacant office building is projected to generate $7,998 in annual
Township expenditures (cell G11), or $159 per 1,000 square feet of development (cell H11). The
difference in annual Township expenditures between the proposed development and the existing vacant
office building is projected to be $84,002 (cell G12).

Annual Township Revenue
Real Estate Tax (cells B17-B23)

The annual real estate tax revenue is determined by applying the Township’s 2024 combined real estate tax
millage totaling 2.792 (cell 136) to the projected assessed value of the proposed development (totaling
$26,935,179, cells D6-D10) and existing vacant office building ($2,714,918, cell D11). The 2024 millage
rate includes the General Fund (1.957 mills) and the Fire Services Tax (0.835 mills), totaling 2.792 mills.
The annual real estate tax revenue is projected to total $75,203 for the proposed development and $7,580
for the existing vacant office building, for a difference of $67,623.



Conshohocken Ridge Fiscal Impact Analysis -11- March 23, 2024

Earned Income Tax (cells C17-C23)

The annual earned income tax revenue is determined in two ways. The earned income tax revenue from
the future residents of the proposed apartments is determined by applying the Township’s tax rate of 0.5
percent to the projected household income of the residents. Household income is calculated by
multiplying the monthly rent for each dwelling type by twelve months and dividing by 25 percent, which is
the industry standard for the maximum percentage of household income used for rent for prospective
tenants of a multifamily development. The monthly rent, total annual housing cost, and minimum annual
household income for each proposed apartment type are shown in the table below.

Proposed Monthly Total Annual Minimum Annual
Dwelling Type Rent Housing Cost Household Income
1BR Rental Apartment $2,000 $24,000 $96,000
2 BR Rental Apartment $3,000 $36,000 $144,000

The minimum annual household income for each dwelling type is then multiplied by the number of units
(totaling 201, cells B6-B7) and by the Township’s earned income tax rate of 0.5 percent. Please note that
these are the minimum levels of annual income necessary to cover the projected rents of the apartments.
Most households will have higher income levels and will use a lower percentage of their household
incomes towards their rents, which will result in significantly higher earned income tax revenue to the
Township (and School District). The earned income tax revenue from the prospective residents of the
proposed apartments is projected to total $115,920 (cells C17-C18).

The earned income tax revenue from the prospective workers at the proposed retail commercial
development is determined by multiplying the projected number of workers (93, cell F8) by the average
annual worker salary of $36,492 (cell 137; see the demographic section, above, for the source of this
figure) by the Township tax rate for nonresident workers of 1.0 percent. This figure is then reduced by 90
percent to reflect the likelihood that most workers will live in municipalities that charge the earned income
tax. Plymouth Township is projected to retain only 10 percent of the earned income tax revenue it collects
from the nonresident workers, and the remaining 90 percent is forwarded to the municipalities where these
nonresident workers live. The annual earned income tax revenue from the 93 workers at the proposed
retail commercial development is projected to total $3,401 (cell C19). No earned income tax revenue is
projected from the proposed structured parking.

The earned income tax revenue is projected to total $119,321 for the proposed development and $0 for the
existing vacant office development, for a difference of $119,321.

Mercantile and Business Privilege Taxes (cells D17-D23)

The mercantile and business privilege tax revenue is determined in two ways. The revenue for the
proposed apartments is determined by dividing the annual gross rent from all units (totaling $5,796,000
and assuming full occupancy) by 1,000 and applying the Township’s tax rate of 1.5 mills. The revenue for
the proposed retail commercial development is determined by multiplying the square feet of development
(18,641, cell BY) by the very conservative figure of $200 per square foot of annual sales, dividing by 1,000
and applying the tax rate of 1.5 mills. The revenue for the existing office building is $0, based on the
building vacancy. The annual mercantile and business privilege tax revenue is projected to total $14,286
for the proposed development and $0 for the existing vacant office building, for a difference of $14,286.



Conshohocken Ridge Fiscal Impact Analysis -12- March 23, 2024

Liquid Fuels Revenue and Local Services Tax (cells E17-E23)

The annual liquid fuels revenue is determined by multiplying the projected number of residents of the
proposed apartments (totaling 305, cells F6-F7) by the 2024 per capita revenue from PennDOT of
$17.9662 (cell 138), according to the current Department of Transportation Bureau of Municipal Services
Municipal Liquid Fuels Allocations Report (dated January 30, 2024). The annual liquid fuels revenue is
projected to total $5,479. The proposed retail commercial development, structured parking, and existing
vacant office building are projected to generate no per capita liquid fuels revenue, and neither scenario is
projected to generate any per mile liquid fuels revenue, since no new Township roads are proposed.

The annual local services tax revenue is determined by applying the Township’s tax rate of $52 per worker
to the number of workers at the proposed retail commercial development (totaling 93), resulting in $4,847.
No annual local services tax revenue is projected from the proposed structured parking and existing vacant
office building (cells E20 and E22). The annual liquid fuels and local services tax revenue is projected to
total $10,741 for the proposed development and $0 for the existing vacant office building, for a difference
of $10,741.

Franchise Fee & Miscellaneous Revenue (cells F17-F23)

The annual cable TV franchise fee and miscellaneous revenue is determined by adding 10 percent of the
$1,080,000 for development related funds (or $108,000; see expenditure analysis, above), and the
Township’s 2024 budgeted cable television franchise fee revenue of $315,000, for a total of $423,000.
This sum is divided by the current number of housing units in the Township (estimated at 8,044, cell 139),
and that average per unit revenue ($52.59, cell 140) is then multiplied by the number of units in the
proposed apartment development (totaling 201, cells B6-B7) as well as to the number of square feet of
proposed retail commercial development (18,641, cell BS) divided by 2,000. In other words, each 2,000
square feet of retail commercial development is projected to generate the same franchise fee and
miscellaneous revenue as one home in the Township. In addition, the proposed apartments will generate
$45 per unit per year in rental housing inspection fee revenue (cell 141). The proposed structured parking
and existing vacant office building are projected to generate no franchise fee or miscellaneous revenue.
The annual franchise fee and miscellaneous revenue is projected to total $20,105 for the proposed
development and $0 for the existing vacant office building, for a difference of $20,105.

Interest Earnings (cells G17-G23)

The annual interest earnings are determined by dividing the projected assessed value of the proposed
development (totaling $26,935,179, cells D6-D10) and the existing vacant office building ($2,714,918, cell
D11) by the total Township taxable assessment of $1,660,921,533 (from the January, 2024 Montgomery
County Board of Assessment Land Use Classification Report, representing the total Township assessed
value minus the assessment of all institutional, utility and government owned properties), and multiplying
that quotient by the sum the Township budgeted for interest earnings in the three operating funds in 2024,
totaling $404,500 and shown in the table below.

Fund Interest Earnings
General Fund $400,000
Health & Welfare Fund $3,000
Highway Aid Fund $1,500
TOTAL $404,500




Conshohocken Ridge Fiscal Impact Analysis -13- March 23, 2024

The annual interest earnings are projected to total $6,560 for the proposed development and $661 for the
existing vacant office building, for a difference of $5,899.

Total Township Revenue (cells H17-H23)

The annual Township revenue from all sources is projected to total $246,217 from the proposed
development and $8,241 from the existing vacant office building, for a difference of $237,975. Annual
revenue per unit is projected to be $971 for the one bedroom apartments, $1,255 for the two bedroom
apartments, $1,133 per 1,000 square feet of retail commercial development, $27 per structured parking
space, and $164 per 1,000 square feet of existing office development (cells 117-122).

Annual Net Township Revenue (cells B27-B33)

After subtracting the expenditures from the revenue, the annual net impact to the Township is projected to
total positive (or surplus) $154,217 for the proposed development and positive $243 for the existing vacant
office building, for a difference of $153,974. Annual net revenue per unit is projected to be positive $625
for the one bedroom apartments, positive $810 for the two bedroom apartments, positive $358 per 1,000
square feet of retail commercial development, positive $27 per structured parking space, and positive $5
per 1,000 square feet of existing office development (cells C27-C32).

Annual revenue is projected to exceed annual expenditures by 180.7 percent for the one bedroom
apartments, 182.0 percent for the two bedroom apartments 46.2 percent for the retail commercial
development, 167.6 percent overall, and 3.0 percent for the existing vacant office building (cells D27-
D32).

Again, please note that these are annual revenue and expenditure figures after buildout, and do not include
the one-time revenue sources during development, such as traffic impact fees, park and recreation fees in
lieu of open space, and permits.

Annual School District Expenditures

The number of units (totaling 201, cells B48-B49 of the School District spreadsheet), square feet of retail
commercial development (18,641, cell B50), structured parking spaces (261, cell B51), and square feet of
existing office development (50,190, cell B53), the average assessed value per unit, per 1,000 square feet
of nonresidential development and per structured parking space (cells C48-C53), and the projected
assessed value (totaling $26,935,179 for the proposed development and $2,714,918 for the existing vacant
office building, cells D48-D54) are determined using the same method as was used for the Township
impact, above. As noted in the demographic section, above, the number of public school (CSD) students at
buildout and full occupancy is projected to total 12 for the proposed development and 0 for the existing
vacant office building (cells F48-F54).

The Colonial School District General Fund budgeted expenditures total $151,153,201 for the 2023-2024
year (cell D79). The following pass-through funds are subtracted from this total:

Pass-Through Fund Budgeted Amount
Public Utility Realty Taxes $100,000
Revenue from Intermediary Sources $1,000,000
Rentals $500,000




Conshohocken Ridge Fiscal Impact Analysis -14- March 23, 2024

Pass-Through Fund Budgeted Amount
Tuition from Patrons $1,587,500
TOTAL $3,187,500

In addition, the budgetary reserve of $500,000 is subtracted, representing funds not projected to be
expended during the school year. The pass-through funds and budgetary reserve total $3,687,500 (cell
D80), with the remaining net School District expenditures totaling $147,465,701 (cell D81). This figure is
then divided by the 2023-2024 District-wide enrollment of 5,400 students (cell 178, from the CSD web
site) to find the 2023-2024 CSD net expenditure of $27,308 per student (cell 179).

This per student expenditure is applied to the 12 students from the proposed development projected to
attend public schools (cells F48-F52) to determine the projected annual School District expenditures of
$315,659 for the proposed development and $0 for the existing vacant office building, for a difference of
$315,659 (cells G48-G54). No annual School District expenditures are projected from the proposed retail
commercial development or structured parking, or the existing vacant office building. The annual School
District expenditure per unit is projected to be $1,188 for the one bedroom apartments and $2,138 for the
two bedroom apartments (cells H48-H49).

Annual School District Revenue
Real Estate Tax (cells B59-B65)

The real estate tax revenue is determined using the same method as was used for the Township impact,
above, except that the School District’s 2023-2024 tax millage rate of 25.0200 (cell 180) is applied to the
assessed value of the proposed development (totaling $26,935,179, cells D48-D52) and existing vacant
office building ($2,714,918, cell D53). No School District homestead exemption is applied, because the
proposed units are rentals, not owner occupied. The annual real estate tax revenue is projected to total
$673,918 for the proposed development and $67,927 for the existing vacant office building, for a
difference of $605,991. Please note that this one revenue source is more than double the projected annual
School District expenditures of $315,659 for the proposed apartments (cells G48-G49).

Earned Income Tax (cells C59-C65)

The annual earned income tax revenue from the prospective residents of the apartments is determined
using the same method as was used for the Township, above. The School District does not collect the
earned income tax from nonresident workers. The annual earned income tax revenue is projected to total
$115,920 for the proposed development and $0 for the existing vacant office building, for a difference of
$115,920.

State & Federal Revenue (cells D59-D65)

The state and federal revenue is determined by adding the School District’s budgeted revenue of
$27,468,085 from the state and federal governments, and dividing by the 2023-2024 student enrollment of
5,400 (cell 178) for an annual per student revenue of $5,087 (cell I81), and applying that per student
revenue to the projected number of CSD students from the proposed apartments (totaling 12, cells F48-
F49). The annual state and federal revenue is projected to total $58,797 for the proposed development and
$0 for the existing vacant office building, for a difference of $58,797.



Conshohocken Ridge Fiscal Impact Analysis -15- March 23, 2024

Earnings on Investments (cells ES9-E65)

The earnings on investments are determined by dividing the projected assessment of the proposed
development (totaling $26,935,179, cells D48-D52) and existing vacant office building ($2,714,918, cell
D53) by the total School District taxable assessment of $4,426,842,852 (from the 2023-2024 CSD budget),
and multiplying that quotient by the sum the School District budgeted for interest earnings in 2023-2024
($240,000). The annual earnings on investments are projected to total $1,460 for the proposed
development and $147 for the existing vacant office building, for a difference of $1,313.

Total School District Revenue (cells F59-F65)

The annual School District revenue from all sources at buildout and full occupancy is projected to total
$850,096 for the proposed development and $68,074 for the existing vacant office building, for a
difference of $782,021. Annual School District revenue per unit is projected to be $3,436 for the one
bedroom apartments, $4,004 for the two bedroom apartments, $3,013 per 1,000 square feet of retail
commercial development, $220 per structured parking space, and $1,356 per 1,000 square feet of existing
vacant office development (cells G59-G64).

Annual Net School District Revenue (cells B69-B75)

After subtracting the expenditures from the revenue, the annual net impact to the School District is
projected to total positive (or surplus) $534,437 for the proposed development and positive $68,074 for the
existing vacant office building, for a difference of $466,362. Annual net revenue per unit is projected to
be positive $2,294 for the one bedroom apartments, positive $1,866 for the two bedroom apartments,
positive $3,013 per 1,000 square feet of retail commercial development, and positive $1,356 per 1,000
square feet of existing vacant office development (cells C69-C74).

Annual revenue is projected to exceed annual expenditures by 189.3 percent for the one bedroom
apartments, 87.3 percent for the two bedroom apartments and 169.3 percent overall (cells D69-D73).
Since there are no projected School District expenditures from the proposed retail commercial
development, structured parking, or existing vacant office building, all revenue from these uses becomes
surplus.



A | B ] C ] D | E | F G H I

| 1 [ANALYSIS OF THE FISCAL IMPACT TO PLYMOUTH TOWNSHIP

> |Of the Proposed Conshohocken Ridge Development March 23, 2024

3

4 Proposed Use/ Number of Assessment Total Persons per Unit/ Total Residents/ | Annual Township [ Exp's per Unit/
T Scenario Units / SF / Spaces per Unit / SF Assessed Value Workers per 1K SF Total Workers Expenditures 1K SF / Space

& |1 BR Apartments 120 $109,071 $13,088,579 1.36 163 $41,500 $346

7 2 BR Apartments 81 $115,071 $9,320,791 1.75 142 $36,046 $445

g |Retail Commercial 18,641 $120.15 $2,239,721 5.00 93 $14,454 $775

9 Structured Parking 261 $8,759 $2,286,089 0 $0 $0

10 |Total Proposed 201/18,641/ 261 $26,935,179 305/93 $92,000

11 |Existing Vacant Office 50,190 $54.09 $2,714,918 0.00 0 $7,998 $159

12 |Difference $24,220,261 $84,002

13
: Annual Township Revenue

15 Proposed Use/ Real Estate Earned Income Mercantile/Business |Liquid Fuels Revenue| Franchise Fee & Interest Total Annual | Rev. per Unit/

16 Scenario Tax Tax Privilege Tax Local Services Tax Misc. Revenue Earnings Revenue 1K SF / Space

17 |1 BR Apartments $36,543 $57,600 $4,320 $3,140 $11,710 $3,188 $116,501 $971

18 |2 BR Apartments $26,024 $58,320 $4,374 $2,755 $7,904 $2,270 $101,647 $1,255

19 Retail Commercial $6,253 $3,401 $5,592 $4,847 $490 $545 $21,129 $1,133

o0 |Structured Parking $6,383 $0 $0 $0 $0 $557 $6,940 $27

21 Total Proposed $75,203 $119,321 $14,286 $10,741 $20,105 $6,560 $246,217

2o |Existing Vacant Office $7,580 $0 $0 $0 $0 $661 $8,241 $164

23 Difference $67,623 $119,321 $14,286 $10,741 $20,105 $5,899 $237,975

24

25 Proposed Use/ Annual Net Annual Net Township Rev. Revenue >

26 |Scenario Township Revenue per Unit / 1K SF / Space Expenditure

57 |1 BR Apartments $75,001 $625 180.7%

28 |2 BR Apartments $65,601 $810 182.0%

29 |Retail Commercial $6,675 $358 46.2%

30 |Structured Parking $6,940 $27 -

34 | Total Proposed $154,217 167.6%

3o |Existing Vacant Office $243 $5 3.0%

33 | Difference $153,974

34

35 NOTES:
; 2024 Township Operating Expenditures (3 funds) $30,833,830 2024 Township General Fund & Fire Tax Millage 2.792
; Minus 2024 Pass-Through and Excluded Expenditures $20,330,343 Average Annual Worker Salary (BLS, 2022) $36,492
z 2024 Net Township Operating Expenditures $10,503,487 2024 PennDOT per Capita Subsidy $17.9662
; 2024 Township Non-Residential Expenditures 55.1% $5,792,484 2024 Township Housing Unit Estimate 8,044
; 2024 Estimated Township Population 18,526 Annual Miscellaneous Revenue per Unit $52.59
Mm 2024 Township Expenditure per Capita $254.29 Annual Rental Housing Inspection Fee per Unit $45




A

| B

| C

| D

| E

| F

UPDATED ANALYSIS OF THE FISCAL IMPACT TO THE COLONIAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

81

43
44 |Of the Proposed Conshohocken Ridge Development March 23, 2024
45
46 Proposed Use/ Number of Assessment Total School Age CSD (Public  [Annual School Dist.| Exp's per Unit /
Z Scenario Units / SF / Spaces per Unit/ SF Assessment Children per Unit | School) Students Expenditures 1K SF / Space
48 |1 BR Apartments 120 $109,071 $13,088,579 0.05 5 $142,510 $1,188
49 |2 BR Apartments 81 $115,071 $9,320,791 0.09 6 $173,149 $2,138
50 |Retail Commercial 18,641 $120 $2,239,721 0.00 0 $0 $0
54 |Structured Parking 261 $8,759 $2,286,089 0.00 0 $0 $0
5o |Total Proposed 201/18,641 /261 $26,935,179 11.56 $315,659
53 |Existing Vacant Office 50,190 $54.09 $2,714,918 0.00 0 $0 $0
54 | Difference $24,220,261 12 $315,659
55
; Annual School District Revenue
57 |Proposed Use/ Real Estate Earned Income State & Federal Earnings on Total Annual Rev. per Unit /
; Scenario Tax Tax Revenue Investments Revenue 1K SF / Space
59 |1 BR Apartments $327,476 $57,600 $26,545 $710 $412,331 $3,436
60 |2 BR Apartments $233,206 $58,320 $32,252 $505 $324,284 $4,004
61 |Retail Commercial $56,038 $0 $0 $121 $56,159 $3,013
62 |Structured Parking $57,198 $0 $0 $124 $57,322 $220
63 |Total Proposed $673,918 $115,920 $58,797 $1,460 $850,096
64 |Existing Vacant Office $67,927 $0 $0 $147 $68,074 $1,356
65 |Difference $605,991 $115,920 $58,797 $1,313 $782,021
66
67 |Proposed Use/ Annual Net School | Annual Net School Dist. Rev. Revenue >
; Scenario District Revenue per Unit / 1K SF / Space Expenditure
69 |1 BR Apartments $269,821 $2,249 189.3%
70 |2 BR Apartments $151,134 $1,866 87.3%
74 |Retail Commercial $56,159 $3,013 -
72 |Structured Parking $57,322 $220 --
73 Total Proposed $534,437 169.3%
74 |Existing Vacant Office $68,074 $1,356 --
75 | Difference $466,362
76
77 |NOTES:
; Pct. of Township School Age Children in Public Schools (2022 ACS) 87.0% 2023-2024 CSD Student Enrollment 5,400
; 2023-2024 CSD Total Expenditures $151,153,201 2023-2024 CSD Net Expenditure per Student $27,308
; Minus Pass-Through Expenditures & Budgetary Reserve $3,687,500 2023-2024 CSD Real Estate Tax Millage 25.0200
[ 2023-2024 CSD Net Expenditures $147,465,701 2023-2024 CSD State/Federal Revenue per Stug® 87




TRANSPORTATION IMPACT ASSESSMENT
CONSHOHOCKEN RIDGE MIXED-USE REDEVELOPMENT
Plymouth Township, Montgomery County, PA

Prepared by

Bowman Consulting Group, Ltd.
835 Springdale Drive, Suite 200

Exton, PA 19341

610.594.9995

Prepared for
BET Investments, Inc.

Christopher J. Williams, PE

June 25, 2025 PA PE License Number 53062-E

Bowman Project Number: 313923-01-001

bowman.com







FEUESLNIAN-DILYLIE FdULES (s

ITIP LISTHDUTION and ASSIGNMENT s
LOEAY NFENTIGE NSO VVIEN o tesasseserss et (o av e siet e seeseuss
FUTUIE | FATNG \ONCTIOINS rsesssrnsssmsssssssisssssssammssmmsmmmmm:

Appendix C: PennDOT TIRe Data

i B el o = PR TV B . I A

HPPENuUIR \J. DalLRYIuunu evelupinenie nmnunndauun

e ey e A s e ey i g

- " mmmA TR W - .

i|Page






BET Investments, Inc. proposes to redevelop the Conshohocken Ridge Corporate Center, which will include the removal of 55,000

retail space, and retention of 145,000 square feet of office space in order to create a true mixed-use development. The

right-in/right-out access to Ridge Pike (SR 3056) and the existing full-movement access to Colwell Lane. A site plan, prepared

R e R I Rl e L e e R T o e R L e e R S Lo

correspondence is provided in Appendix A.

scope of this study includes an evaluation of the existing weekday morning, weekday afternoon, and Saturday midday peak

» Colwell Lane and Existing Full-Movement Access
Based on trip generation data compiled for Multifamily Housing Mid-Rise (ITE Land Use Code 221), Supermarket (ITE Land Use
publication entitled, Trip Generation Manual, 11" Edition, the proposed redevelopment will generate a total of approximately 43

hour, and 199 additional "new"” trips during the Saturday midday peak hour versus the existing office space if fully occupied.

L eeibes eillmaoe cemesesssasee wllbe Fracme alfe calfee: 20 sellece @ mlifale. mevalbemenns mles  2allZ8 2o ol efees mee FBewa e e amases e oy pre sl coul

The following on-site traffic improvements are recommended.

Upgrade the existing pedestrian facilities to provide ADA compliant curb ramps and a striped crosswalk to cross the

1|Page



Site Access and Colwell Lane
e Install a Stop sign on the egress approach.

- FIUVIUL d SUITREU CTUSSWIK LU LTUSS UIE dLLESS. UpYIdue LS LIUSSITY, d> NECueU, W INsel ALUA Sdinudius.

TS LI ST Y %2 WL e ST TS Vel LS SRSl L e dd W S W LS IV TS VIR TSI L Wl S W VIS,

2|Page



The proposed redevelopment is located within the Conshohocken Ridge Corporate Center, located on the southwest corner of

intersections in the vicinity of the site, which comprise the study area roadway network, are described in this section.

55

25

g5

+ Colwell Lane and Existing Full-Movement Access

The study intersections were reviewed and agreed upon by Plymouth Township. The existing characteristics of the study

3]Page



Pike (SR 3056) and Chemical Road / North Lane (SR 3015) / Colwell Lane intersection.

The Conshohacken and Spring Mill SEPTA Regional Rail Stations are both located within two miles of the site and both stations

Cldmialls fm v el alam i e nlie L il P D Bl AR AAPEY e d Aobciall | ma

Pedestrian curb ramps, push-buttons, and countdown timers are provided at the intersection of Ridge Pike (SR 3056) and Colwell

4|Page



kA WA PR i mmle mniln e Thc wamidee o alea
a1 IV OO SHIVUD, T TSI W U

count periods constitute the peak hours that are the basis of this traffic analysis.

The resultant peak hour traffic volumes are depicted in Figure 3A for the weekday morning, weekday afternoon, and Saturday

e i s B T Rl R R e

5|Page



This section presents the details regarding the proposed site, including the incremental increase in traffic volumes generated by

site access configuration, traffic control, and sight distance requirements.

based on data from the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) publication, Trip Generation Manual, 11" Edition. Table 2B

Saem sammarma s s mrrarsmra Gis mmraa mmam] m i AmawLAmRr Na F M A AT Wl ARl Am AR IE LI WS M WSIm NS i) WAl [e s amaas wamsiaaws ta wme [es wesisramuamsg woa

95 21 116 31 a7 118 22 34 56

159 22 181 30 149 179 31 27 58

6|Page



The traffic volumes generated by the proposed redevelopment were prepared based on trip generation data compiled from
generation rate for the office uses within existing corporate center as presented in Table 2A. As part of the redevelopment, the
Tables 2C and 2D present the anticipated vehicular trip generation for the proposed redevelopment.

Upon redevelopment, the site will operate as a true mixed-use development with residential, retail, and office uses. As a result,

221

11.61 0.34

7|Page



13 10 23 44 40 84 80 78 158

12 9 21 27 27 54 20 19 39
A £7 g5 -5 E7 il E7 -3 g5

16 22 20 42 18 16 34
126 28 154 41 115 156 29 45 74
-6 8 | -14 | 3 -0 | -3 -2 -5 -1
120 20 140 38 105 143 27 40 67

BRI WOI RN RIS § W W S IV W I I

173 38 211 56 158 214 40 62 102
-0 -0 =0 =0 -0 =0 =0 =0 =0
173 38 211 56 158 214 40 62 102

Total 177 111 188 244 432 188 202 390
-15 -15 -30 -46 -46 -92 -28 -28 -56
=2 =2 =4 =14 =13 =27 Sk =16 =33
160 94 313 143

8|Page



Access to the site is proposed to be maintained via one unsignalized right-in/right-out driveway located along Ridge Pike (SR

Pike (SR 3056). The recommendations for the proposed access designs, including auxiliary turn lanes, traffic control, and

along Colwell Lane. PennDOT's right-turn lane warrant analysis procedure is applicable to roads with one or two directional

S ohe mara i srarriang mraman e raageen mama e M amaTana Saar e mmarane 1iara i h ama E At ARl f Nimes e mesamam g wertam samn asresntnaasroanp seagees seeses

lable 3. lurn Lane warrant Summary

No
No
vy POITW VI N SIS UL @UIE T, T -l-“b““ccf l”y LA PRV \."OrJLC' P
B f e e e A ey A e 1 AR AT AT A £ AR e A T4 AT s T As A A LI 1A e 1 s T i 1T e e e 1

9|Page



Additionally, the geometric design of the proposed site accesses were preliminarily evaluated based on guidelines contained in

Nickrict mAaliciae

L N T e S L T o N - e P T T, B T | L

Install a Stop sign on the egress approach.
e  Provide a striped crosswalk to cross the access. Upgrade the crossing, as needed, to meet ADA standards.

e oy wrrws wmassaesr mmrcas SRSt f] I Samc wr WA AN] f WA STA ) Eatan S W aw [RC W IS WM Srran SrastimeaEs W SPamcows Swmrraa [eeas) oW s e

[ ) or L T o r v wi 1 -1 CO P T

DAanAd-

Table 4 summarizes the available sight distance measurements, as well as PennDOT's sight distance requirements at the existing

PRSI T IR A II LIRS VG I LI

25 156
25 -3% 195 170
25 190 156
25 n/a 170 411

85 -2% 275 424
V1) DOISU U LG UGG Iy L UG I | AU SIS AL IGI IS I U | Sy VU UM, LS T L, ALLSa2 LU WU AL Ly )
S s i S LU Y SIS s A LS L L I 1 A 1 iy Y e S T e 1 e L i i i

of Highways by Driveways and Local Roads and the posted speed limit.

10|Page



As shown in Table 4, all of the existing available sight distances at the site access intersection meet PennDOT's desirable sight

provision of sight distances according to the above table.

11|Page



B T B T L B T L DR E P TR L

PRV N PR - JURG R [ R - < | P P N P P R R -SRI U ) PR S SARTI 6 T 0 1 T PRI I T - N PR [ [ —

B R T e .2 o R T T 2 2 T T T = - T 4 Tl SRS

= e R R

- -t P .. = sem em - e

A - - S - - - - - R - s E—

Urban Non-Interstate roadways in Montgomery County.

generated by nearby approved developments in the vicinity of the Conshohocken Ridge Corporate Center. Specifically, the

SWTIZNVIIVLATI NUUYT WVl U ELE WSS ML LIS WS W LS Uaiie DUy GRpIYAITTIGUSIY JJ/U0 Wl IV eue dyuals

without-development conditions, but to reflect today's office market and the range of uses within the existing

NUYa ranns. (103 USVEIVRTIITHL LUHSINES W1 @ 2 105 SYUAIT IWUL LUHIVETITIHILE THGIRTL WILHLL TU TUSHIY PUSIUUND WY DT

& Canter Associates, dated September 7, 2022.

* Genesis of Conshohocken: This development consists of the expansion of the existing car dealership from 19,188

armmlind 4 tha ctodi aras

Information regarding the nearby approved developments, obtained from Plymouth Township, are provided in Appendix G.

e B L T R e LT BT T L Bl LR Ly e e e L N L T e I e R L LR

12|Page



areas, as well as reconfiguration of the 1-476 and Ridge Pike interchange. Based on the Traffic Signal Design Report Ridge Pike

peak hour traffic volumes along Ridge Pike in this area as a result of this planned project, as well as other planned regional

R L e I L B e I L L L L L o L L L L e e L N ) R e P TR L

[ ' [ -

(SR 3015) beyond the results of this traffic study.

- - - v ' -

2 v Tormrmoaes mee e e B el s s SR wcialome re. dorlomsaescer meel bonre wee il omolore: sa Lz abe =2fte oweccsre ol eeelil ool

as shown in Figure 4C and 4D, were added to the future 2030 without-development traffic volumes, resulting in the future 2030

development peak hour traffic volumes are illustrated in Figure 5B for the weekday morning, weekday afternoon, and Saturday

e Am At s amamrarra) Smaran N iAo r mamima Sl S iar Gl ams e wmrw maasai i1 R Smyewms e o wmmwm e

LELdIEU Udie vUILITIE Projecliun WUIKsSIEEL die Droviueud 11 Appenuix .

13|Page



The peak hour traffic volumes were analyzed to determine the existing and future traffic operating conditions, both without and

LF LU U U INY ITIAT IS TR LW, TS e LU IV IS L U Y VLTI YT IR e LRI T, TSV, Je ) Ui aiidiy 31
LIS 21Y1IANLTU IHILSIITLUVIE Wi INIUYT T IRG D1% QU] U WIS LGS f TN L LGS ISRl WA (21 DY 1) G2 LT eV UveD

not support intersections with more than four approaches.

both signalized and unsignalized intersections, as well as the correlation between average total control delay and the respective
level-of-service (LOS) criteria for each intersection type.
the following procedures and assumptions were utilized:

For signalized intersections, the Pennsylvania base saturation flow rate (Exhibit 10-9) and Pennsylvania traffic

Engineering Manual, were used.

Enr nincinnalizad intarcartinne tha haca rritiral haarhuaue at TWSE intarcartinne (Fvhihit 1N-11Y anAd haca
Engineering Manual, were used.

PRI R NI LR R LA I LA e IR S RIS Fa TRl S LI e 11 EE L IR M ¥ A R e L s R L rars

¢ |If the evaluation of without-development to with-development conditions indicates that the overall

10 seconds. If the overall intersection delay increase is less than or equal to 10 seconds, mitigation of the

LV LI Ry L DRI B 1T F R e ey ey SRR Ry VWO LI L L SR T VA A D VI LY D0 WV R e LD
- = . oo - _—— - I e "noo. I . n R —~—~ o [ - s . i
- ' ' 1 '

o Hae W el bl oflil svreoeeee mepe 2 emecesaslblfs Peuedll ol sermafos o s leane e albcelie o= a0 el = el Be =

The fcnbecwcc abicme wf Midae Nilew fON ANCELY awmd Sl All T cacmn F Rlactls | mcmn f Flhccnical Naad €D AINACY mcmmacadas condla Aala el s
IS LI DTuLIun Wi I\IU‘:’C FCIRT |2 QUJIW) @l SUIVWEH Lalic f INUIL Lanic j wnicinneal nwau 1am v ay U'JEIGI.ED wvi U:la)f alma 1>
TEW2 CL LIS TSI TLRIW 1 LIS 211 1) WRTTOLED YYIL WSUILOLT G 1w UHEE W LIS NIVE ORI WOl 163 TSIy O IS T LY s
L e I L S e L L B e I AL L L BT I L S T IS LR TL ]

intersection. However, several ongoing regional transportation projects, including the reconfiguration of the Ridge Pike and |-

14|Page



476 interchange, as well as the PA Turnpike Lafayette Street interchange are anticipated to result in a regional redistribution of

traffic study. The intersection is anticipated to operate at the same level-of-service between future without- and future with-

contained in the matrices provided in Table 6.

1dIE J: €UVIV FULUNE UVETdIl IMLEMDELUUN LEVEID-UI-JETVILE

No
No
No
v LEREU U LIS IS SIS 1 I U WL U LS Y S IS L Y 1S Y SIS 1 I 13, 111 S a1
[ . [ [ [ [ [ e —th ~ - i [ i .
P bherall e bl o wre b o o i e walalie B Levane: R BB v il e e an lalln wwwmas Balle B cealalee o o e e wl Lo o acwe

out of the site access during the peak hours evaluated.

15|Page



Table 8. Gap Study

50

126

Yes

Yes

16|Page



BET Investments, Inc. proposes to redevelop the Conshohocken Ridge Corporate Center, which will include the removal of 55,000

retail space, and retention of 145,000 square feet of office space in order to create a true mixed-use development. The

frmm mmm e mgm = mm et mEmmm e fm e m s memmeemenn e

T [ - . ' ' .t

redevelopment traffic is more on a Saturday, since the existing corporate center generates very little traffic on the weekend,

to the residential, retail and supermarket land uses. Therefore, as expected, on a Saturday when compared to an office use, the

N = T = = s = = = = = = = T T A e == 3 o =
i (] i i i F - i [ [ i [ N [
" v . ' - = N - - -
| [P PR PRI R . <+ O A, Alm i a mm PP R [ DG [ DY [N TR U IR | P e § R FRRIS | A AR [ [ | S R [, ¥

L N 7 [ o s o N U T o - e I T TP e
LIS SHU S CWTHTTUUT, UL WHHGH WY DIV TWSTIUNY ally dp/acily Hpiyveiiiei e di biis niteia>tulivi I

Lafayette Street interchange are anticipated to result in a regional redistribution of traffic and a net decrease in traffic volumes

W W MR L L SR e T Ve W Sl Vi Rl VR R e YE LT IR R DAL e VR e WO e B s T R

17|Page



Table 6 - Level of Service Matrices

Ridge Pike (SR 3056) and Chemical Road / North Lane (SR 3015) / Colwell Lane

e —— Weekday Morning Weekday Afternoon Saturday Midday
Peak Hour Peak Hour Peak Hour
2095 2030 2095 2030 2095 2030
Build-Out Year Build-Out Year Build-Out Year
Development Condition Existing [ w/o Dev | w/Dev Existing fl w/o Dev | w/Dev Existing fl w/o Dev | w/Dev
E E E E E F F F F
o - 73.9 728 746 788 79.0 80.1 81.8 82.6 87.7
z A
&
3 R D D D D D E D D D
o %
22
412 424 433 515 548 55.9 388 405 430
F F F F F F E E F
° 803 84.0 859 2205 2333 | 2982 783 79.7 92.0
£
& D D D D D D D D D
©
2 450 420 471 441 434 460 3.7 456 466
o
D D D D D E E E E
39.9 366 403 54.0 516 56.1 69.4 723 749
E E E E E E E E E
727 741 779 733 779 796 69.9 704 736
E E E E E E E E E
62.2 62.9 635 76.1 78.1 783 68.6 695 7.7
3 F F F F F F F F F
= z (North) 1413 1466 | 1498 99.1 1028 | 1034 89.2 91.1 953
2
b & Thru F F F F F F E 3 F
s 4
5 (Colwell) 809 1014 943 809 85.8 940 710 73.9 820
. B C C B B B C C D
Right
152 209 27.7 120 122 127 225 334 540
F F F F F F F F F
Left
197.1 2141 | 2229 2235 2453 | 2727 1187 1454 | 1638
2 e F F F F F F F F F
33
]
Tt x
o 2326 2561 | 2648 3618 3774 | 3786 144.1 1533 | 1762
A A A A A A A A A
15 15 15 34 35 35 13 13 13
E E E F F F E E E
Overall
727 760 794 947 979 | 1048 609 645 715




Table 6 - Level of Service Matrices
Ridge Pike (SR 3056) and Right-In/Right-Out Access

Time Period Weekday Morning Weekday Afternoon Saturday Midday
Peak Hour Peak Hour Peak Hour
Year 2025 2030 2025 2050 2025 2030
Build-Out Year Build-Out Year Build-Out Year
Development . - . e
- Existing |l w/o Dev | w/Dev Existing | w/o Dev | w/Dev Existing | w/o Dev | w/Dev
Condition
Q)] Q)] Q)] M (M (1 Q)] Q)] Q)]
©
wn
=]
m
o
(2
[
-
a
[
>
S
3
wB Q)] Q)] Q)] M (M (M Q)] Q)] Q)]
Thru
" B B B C C C B B B
b
3 .
3l NB  Right
3
“ 13.1 134 13.9 15.8 16.5 179 127 133 14.5
A A A A A A A A A
Overall
0.0 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.2 04 0.0 0.1 0.4

(1) Movement operates at free-flow conditions.



Site Access

Table 6 - Level of Service Matrices
Colwell Lane and Site Access

Colwell Lane

Time Period Weekday Morning Weekday Afternoon Saturday Midday
Peak Hour Peak Hour Peak Hour
Year 2025 2030 2025 2050 2025 2030
Build-Out Year Build-Out Year Build-Out Year
Development . - . e
- Existing |l w/o Dev | w/Dev Existing | w/o Dev | w/Dev Existing | w/o Dev | w/Dev
Condition
B B B B B C B B B
10.8 114 12.6 124 143 15.9 10.2 10.7 12.6
A A A A A A A A A
8.9 9.1 9.1 9.0 9.1 9.3 9.3 94 9.7
()] Q)] (M (M (1M (M ()] ()] Q)]
A A A A A A A A A
Overall
0.4 0.7 1.6 17 32 3.6 0.7 1.2 2.6

(1) Movement operates at free-flow conditions.




Table 7 - 95th Percentile Queue Matrices

Ridge Pike (SR 3056) and Chemical Road / North Lane / Colwell Lane

Time Period Weekday Morning Weekday Afternoon Saturday Midday
Peak Hour Peak Hour Peak Hour
2030 2030 2030
Current Future
s ) o) 2025 Build-Out Year 2025 Build-Out Year 202 Build-Out Year
torage Storage
Development Condition Existing f w/o Dev | w/Dev Existing Jf w/o Dev | w/Dev Existing || w/o Dev [ w/Dev
250" 250 56 39 54 120 114 124 168 169 184
e =
£e
a
s @
T
-2 2,100 850 27 291 297 497 527 538 267 302 317
295 295 138 158 165 485 495 566 142 149 222
o
=
&
2 2,600' 2,600' 631 684 701 420 440 436 396 432 425
he]
3
Right 230 230 370 367 373 538 547 547 690 708 708
Left 200° 200°
NEB  Thru 169 179 205 168 206 217 132 145 181
Right
Left 280" 280"
153 154 154 281 286 286 236 240 240
Left 290" 290"
Thru
= 900" 900" 522 527 527 415 422 422 386 392 392
L] (North)
£ 3
-
S Thee | g0 900 290 35 | 342 213 296 | 331 212 26 | 25
(Colwell)
Right 265" 265" 117 161 217 90 92 96 209 317 410
Left 220" 220" 362 373 380 391 406 431 267 308 324
° Left
=
3 Thru
'é NB 3,100 3,100 334 345 346 443 448 448 279 286 296
2 Thru
Right 205" 205" 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(1) Distance to adjacent intersections shown in italics.



Table 7 - 95th Percentile Queue Matrices
Ridge Pike (SR 3056) and Right-In/Right-Out Access

Ridge Pike (SR 3056)

. ) Weekday Morning Weekday Afternoon Saturday Midday
Time Period
Peak Hour Peak Hour Peak Hour
Year 2025 2030 2025 2030 2025 2030
Build-Out Year Build-Out Year Build-Out Year
Development . L .
" Existing [l w/o Dev | w/Dev Existing [l w/o Dev | w/Dev Existing [l w/o Dev | w/Dev
Condition
NB Right 0 25 25 25 25 25 0 25 25

Site Access




Table 7 - 95th Percentile Queue Matrices
Colwell Lane and Site Access

Time Period Weekday Morning Weekday Afternoon Saturday Midday
Peak Hour Peak Hour Peak Hour
Year 2025 2030 2025 2030 2025 2030
e
Build-Out Year Build-Out Year Build-Out Year
Development . . L
. Existing w/o Dev | w/Dev Existing w/o Dev | w/Dev Existing w/o Dev | w/Dev
Condition
a
g
< 25 25 25 25 30 40 25 25 25
£
w
0 0 25 0 0 25 0 0 25
v
c
5
3
2
o
(¥]




N

Schematic-
Not To
Scale

RIDGE|
PIKE|

SITE

FIGURE 1
Site Location Map

CONSHOHOCKEN RIDGE CORPORATE CENTER Bowman

PLYMOUTH TOWNSHIP, MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PA



er

L-11x17

FIGURE 2
Site Plan

CONSHOHOCKEN RIDGE CORPORATE CENTER

PLYMOUTH TOWNSHIP, MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PA

XTO-MC\mem\eng\BETINV11313923 - Conshocken Ridge Plym Twp\Traffic\Graphics\2025-06 TiS\Figure 2.dwg



ElE
< P
HE
&
—-|>
N 2
o
>
Schematic- ———— °©
Not To SHNG
Scale QLRNR
BaRe
8830 | b 593(388)464]
eaag | = 984(727)707
<— 1504(1216)[1291] iji 61(7(4][6)1[] ]
RIDGE PIKE ¢ L\ N 14(40)(23] RIDGE
(SR 3056) (844](1294)719 — | > [1021(67)22 _} PIKE
el [6061(1032}522 —» g
= [96](150)151 —y| ,\\ Y
= (45](58)31 — N
= e
TN\ %Y
$298 4
G e
S=3 R
=o==
R24 5
Bt
a3
wim
,@
= &
I
=8 NG
= (2 ’I{o
28 K
=8
o5
no
(4=
SITE e i
ACCESS
16618 4 [ =1
36 — | 2R
=g
a
=
[
)
LEGEND o
5  WEEKDAY MORNING e
(5) WEEKDAY AFTERNOON 5|2
[5] SATURDAY MIDDAY 2|2

FIGURE 3A
Existing Peak Hour Traffic Volumes

CONSHOHOCKEN RIDGE CORPORATE CENTER Bowman

PLYMOUTH TOWNSHIP, MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PA

BGARRISON - 06/18/2025 - g:\pa-exto-mc\mem\eng\BETINV1\313823 - conshocken ridge plym twp\Traffic\Graphics\2025-06 ts|\Figure 3A.dwg



EIE
< HE
i )
21>
W =
o
>
Schematic- © OVERALL
oo R
oo
D(D)[D]
F(F)E]
RIDGE PIKE RIDGE
(SR 3056) . PIKE
OVERALL
ATAIA] r
o
6)
=
|
(=]
ale
wlH
al=
OVERALL
SITE s
SITE
ACCESS
mmm-‘k <f
4
LEGEND =
4

A WEEKDAY MORNING
(A) WEEKDAY AFTERNOON
[A] SATURDAY MIDDAY

"N EXISTING LANE/MOVEMENT
@  EXISTING TRAFFIC SIGNAL
e EXISTING STOP CONTROL

FIGURE 3B
Existing Peak Hour Levels-of-Service

ANV

CONSHOHOCKEN RIDGE CORPORATE CENTER

PLYMOUTH TOWNSHIP, MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PA

113IM100

Bowman

BGARRISON - 04/15/2025 - g:\pa-exto-mc\mecrm\eng\BETINVI\313923 - conshocken ridge plym twp\Traffic| Graphics\2025-06 tis\Figure 38.dwg



N 2|2
< wl2
i )
21>
o 2
)
>
Schematic- ©
Not To
Scale
8 L
= (40%) * L rzo%
RIDGE PIKE tf < RIDGE
(SR 3056) . PIKE
o5 e o
® ol > \<
g (5%) TN »\
i *\’00
N\
= @
oo
ES
>
(=]
ale
A E
G
o,%
PN
DN
£
g
x
SITE e i
ACCESS
(ss%) 4 | =14
wow S| 8
LEGEND §
5% ENTER NE
(5%) EXIT z|=
FIGURE 4A

New Site Trip Distribution - Residential

CONSHOHOCKEN RIDGE CORPORATE CENTER Bowman

PLYMOUTH TOWNSHIP, MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PA



N [T
X
< a z
i I
21>
o o
o
>
Schematic- ©
Not To
Scale
s |
=—(30%) ° §30%
RIDGE PIKE < © RIDGE
(SR 3056) PIKE
s [ oy «
g (5%) — ,\\
K &
N\
FE G
oo
& =
|
(=]
ale
A E
G
o,%
%yog%
K
3
X
SITE e Jy
ACCESS
(asoe) 4 | =14
x| g
LEGEND §
5% ENTER slg
(5%) EXIT H =
FIGURE 4B

New Site Trip Distribution - Retail

CONSHOHOCKEN RIDGE CORPORATE CENTER

PLYMOUTH TOWNSHIP, MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PA

exto-melmem|\eng\BETINV11313923 - conshocken ridge plym twp\Traffic\Graphics\2025-06 tis\Figure 4B.dwg



« sl
&8
¢ :
>
Schematic- ©
Not To
Scale
9 [
G -—
~—22(8)(13] N » N i 4)5]
RIDGE PIKE tf < RIDGE
(SR 3056) —-|r ) PIKE
3](2)6
(o7 = 1, OH8E = Z
2 [21(2)3 — P
E i A@
T\ ®
N w
58 B
2T =
5=
>
(=]
ale
ala
Z
o,%
N
— N%
5 )
B
EXTERNAL *
VEHICLETRIPs | AM (PM) [SAT] SITE SiTE <y
IN 18 (24) 126] 'ACCESS AT B
out 57 (20) (331 Blas 3§
=
(" LeGEND o
S WEEKDAY MORNING <]
(5) WEEKDAY AFTERNOON 5|z
[5] SATURDAY MIDDAY z|=

FIGURE 4C
New Site Trip Assignment - Residential

CONSHOHOCKEN RIDGE CORPORATE CENTER Bowman

PLYMOUTH TOWNSHIP, MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PA

BGARRISON - 06/18/2025 - ¢:\pa-exto-mc\merm\eng\BETINVI\313923 - conshocken ridge plym twp\Traffic| Graphics\2025-06 tis\Figure 4C.dwg



N 712
“ B
gl
i )
21>
N 2
)
>
Schematic- ©
Not To
Scale —
5
N
<—5(18)[26) N = N i~ 720)126]
RIDGE PIKE tf < RIDGE
(SR 3056) —-|r ) PIKE
[91(6)2
2707 | o, das &
S [41(3)1 —] o~
B K <
- ~Z
T \*
EININS
[} w
o= =
S E
&
>
(=]
ale
wulS
A E
G
o,%
o
_ N,
£ X
3 V)
&
NEW EXTERNAL
VEHICLETRIPS | AM (PM) [5AT] SlTE sre i
ACCESS
IN 2 (66) 190] ey 1t
out 17 (60) (851 Eiez 3 5
<
(" LeGEND o
5 WEEKDAY MORNING e
(5) WEEKDAY AFTERNOON 5|2
[5] SATURDAY MIDDAY HI=

FIGURE 4D
New Site Trip Assignment - Retail

CONSHOHOCKEN RIDGE CORPORATE CENTER Bowman

PLYMOUTH TOWNSHIP, MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PA

BGARRISON - 06/18/2025 - g:\pa-exto-mc\mcrm\eng\BETINVI\313923 - conshocken ridge plym twp\ Troffic| Graphics\2025-06 tis\Figure 4D.dwg



< A
i I
21>
¢ 3
>
Schematic- ©
Not To
Scale
L
(BN PR
= ot v
RIDGE PIKE A A RIDGE
(SR 3056) [-5](-6)-1 —» PIKE
tien — | - «
2 R o~
ci 3 n
il
=
)
=<
»
(=]
=
A E
G
o%}y
N
— N
% >
ST
pass-ay ExTERNALL =e
VEHICLETRIPS | AM (PM) [SAT] SlTE sre J4
IN 2 (14) [17) ACCESS Y Y
ouT 2 (13) [16] o — | 22
==
e
( LEGEND -
5 WEEKDAY MORNING 2
(5) WEEKDAY AFTERNOON sl
[5] SATURDAY MIDDAY z|=2

FIGURE 4E
Passby Site Trip Assignment - Retail

CONSHOHOCKEN RIDGE CORPORATE CENTER Bowman

PLYMOUTH TOWNSHIP, MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PA

BGARRISON - 06/18/2025 - g:\pa-exto-mc\mcm\eng|8E

11313923 - conshocken ridge plym twp\ Traffic\Graphics\2025-06 tis\Figure 4€.dwg



by [}
G
X
< a2
215
G
—-|>
N 2
o
>
Schematic- ———— ©
Not To GRNG
Scale 2385
PNt
ses Lz95(3(91>[ﬁ681]
2038 | = 1028(756)[754
<—1581(1284)[1384] j ‘I o ‘i 74{78)[65]
RIDGE PIKE Lo f 5 100400231 RIDGE
(SR 3056) 1922)(1335)748 — | = [102](63)13 —} PIKE
oN2ses = f [6621(1075)554 —» XN
& [113](158)158 —y PSS
= [541(63)35 — RN
e %, 255,
%, Y
[T >
SEOR
RS
=w==
5E8 5
S =B
Al =
wl5
wim
4«%
i~ &
3,
_E NG
N= (2 ’I{o
oy KO
=8 4
25
55
én
SITE e i
'ACCESS
poj112)1s 414
o
RaGas | BY
==
[ed
=2
=
S
2
LEGEND
- (=)
5 WEEKDAY MORNING [}
(5) WEEKDAY AFTERNOON 5|z
[5] SATURDAY MIDDAY z|E

FIGURE 5A
2030 Peak Hour Traffic Volumes without Development

CONSHOHOCKEN RIDGE CORPORATE CENTER Bowman

PLYMOUTH TOWNSHIP, MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PA

BGARRISON - 04/14/2025 - g:\pa-exto-mc\mem\eng\BETINV1\313823 - conshocken ridge plym twp\Traffic\Graphics\2025-06 ts\Figure 5A.dwg



by [}
%
X
< a2
215
&
—-|>
N 2
o
>
Schematic- ———— °©
Not To GaNG
Scale 2205
& 6o 3
ER5E | i,
<— 1606(1302)[1419] j ’I v ‘i 79(107)[103]
RIDGE PIKE e R RIDGE
(SR 3056) [917](1329)747 — | > (13170121 PIKE
taonstez = |, [693(1092)567 —» g
o [119](162)161 —g ,\\ N
& N
& (541(63)35 — NS,
g8 %o
ol ) 0,
N4
1 IN\% %
G >
BB
8= &
=N==
ST
> SEN B
3. =
als -
wim
4«%
N &
N I
8 ‘%’, &,
o= (2 ’I{o
fary] <
38
i
oR
3=
SITE e i
ACCESS
se)126)50 4 | =14
en
321(27)16 — 28
Ny
=
=}
=
5
&
LEGEND
- (=)
5 WEEKDAY MORNING e
(5) WEEKDAY AFTERNOON 5|2
[5] SATURDAY MIDDAY 2|2

FIGURE 5B
2030 Peak Hour Traffic Volumes with Development

CONSHOHOCKEN RIDGE CORPORATE CENTER Bowman

PLYMOUTH TOWNSHIP, MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PA

BGARRISON - 06/18/2025 - ¢:\pa-exto-mc\mem\eng\BETINVI\313923 - conshocken ridge plym twp\Traffic| Graphics\2025-06 tis\Figure 58.dwg



by [}
%
< E =
8l=
o
w1
—-|>
o =
o
>
50//\;9/[7773”0 °© OVERALL
ot /o
Scale omTEm E(F)E]
i
SR m - D(D)(E]
D(D)[D]
Jo 7
RIDGE PIKE RIDGE
(SR 3056) Py PIKE
OVERALL
ATAITA] r (FIE)E
@ (ol(o)D
(s}
=
|
]
2le
wlS
A E
OVERALL
SITE s
SITE
ACCESS
[B](8)B < I' 4
4
LEGEND z
A WEEKDAY MORNING z
(A) WEEKDAY AFTERNOON
[A]  SATURDAY MIDDAY
"N EXISTING LANE/MOVEMENT 3
@  EXISTING TRAFFIC SIGNAL NE
=R EXISTING STOP CONTROL z|=

FIGURE 5C
2030 Peak Hour Levels-of-Service without Development

CONSHOHOCKEN RIDGE CORPORATE CENTER Bowman

PLYMOUTH TOWNSHIP, MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PA

BGARRISON - 04/15/2025 - g:\pa-exto-mc\merm\eng\BETINVI\313923 - conshocken ridge plym twp\Traffic| Graphics\2025-06 tis\Figure 5C.dwg



by [}
%
2 b
8l=
o
w1
—-|>
o =
o
>
50//\;9/[7773”0 °© OVERALL
ot /o
Scale S =M E(F)E]
ool
e - D(E)[E]
D(D)[D]
Jo 7
RIDGE PIKE RIDGE
(SR 3056) Py PIKE
OVERALL
ABIA] r [FI(FIE
@ [D1(EID
(s}
=
|
]
2le
wlS
A E
OVERALL
SITE s
SITE
ACCESS
(BI(C)B < I' 4
4
LEGEND z
A WEEKDAY MORNING z
(A) WEEKDAY AFTERNOON
[A]  SATURDAY MIDDAY
"N EXISTING LANE/MOVEMENT 3
@  EXISTING TRAFFIC SIGNAL NE
=R EXISTING STOP CONTROL z|=

FIGURE 5D
2030 Peak Hour Levels-of-Service with Development

CONSHOHOCKEN RIDGE CORPORATE CENTER Bowman

PLYMOUTH TOWNSHIP, MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PA

BGARRISON - 06/18/2025 - g:\pa-exto-mc\merm\eng\BETINVI\313923 - conshocken ridge plym twp\Troffic| Graphics\2025-06 tis\Figure 5D.dwg



TO: Council & Matt West

FROM: Rick Carbo
DATE: July 31, 2025
SUBJECT: Tree Give away

Matt, | want to give you an update on EAB’s Tree Give Away. This year’s date will be Saturday
September 27t from 9am until 12:30pm in the Municipal Building parking lot. There will be a
planting demo at 10am for anyone that would like to attend. The EAB will advertise this event
on their Facebook Page, The Community Center’s Facebook Page and Flyers posted at the
Community Center Front Desk. They have also developed several documents, which | have
attached, including a Pledge for recipients and a Sign-Up Form. This is a first come first served
event with 50 Trees available in several Species



Trees sourced from TreeAuthority.net
Please contact

communitycanopyproject@gmail.com with any

questions!

Plymouth Township 1st Annual Native Tree Giveaway 2025
Planting Information Sheet
Tree Authority Nursery exclusively uses air pruning bags to reduce circling / girdling roots and transplant shock.
They grow their trees so the root flares are visible at soil level, and they structurally prune throughout when the tree
is young. Generally, you will receive a high quality tree!

Safety First: Face shovels down on the ground when not in use. Wear gloves as there can be broken glass and
sharp objects in the soil. If you’re unsure about underground utilities, call 811 within 10 days of planting to
confirm you are safe to dig in the proposed planting area. It’s free of charge to homeowners.

Preparing Hole in Advance:
Dig a hole about 3 feet wide and 10 inches deep. If possible, separate the soil from the sod and place it on a tarp
beside the hole to use for backfilling. Place caution cones in hole and nearby, as needed. Please note:

e Do not include the sod (grass, grass roots) in the hole when backfilling - use only the soil.

e Use the sod (root-side facing up) to create a berm around the perimeter of your hole to suppress grass and
to help hold water around your tree’s root zone. You don’t want turf to compete with your tree.

Planting the tree:
® Remove support stake: If there is a bamboo or fiberglass stake bound to the tree’s trunk, please carefully
remove the bands attaching the stake to the tree. Pull the stake upward to dislodge it from the tree.

® Remove tree from the pot: Most of the air-pruned cloth pots should have a velcro strip on the side. Unzip
the velcro, and do your best to carefully remove the tree’s root ball from the pot. Sometimes, placing the tree
on its side (avoiding branch damage / breakage) and pressing the side of the pot helps to loosen the soil.
Please reuse the air-pruned bag to grow veggies, or return the bag to our collection site at the Plymouth
Township Building [700 Belvoir Road], as it can be reused at the nursery.

@ Check roots: Lay the tree on its side to massage the root ball with your hands to loosen the soil around the
roots. Gently shake the tree to dislodge enough soil to check the root system and the root flare. Splay roots
outward like the spokes of a wheel. There is no need to remove all of the soil as long as you can observe the
root flare and splay any circling roots.

@ Plant the tree so that its root flare is just above ground.

a. Trees/soil can settle, so tamp the very bottom of the hole before
placing the tree in. Do not stomp or otherwise strongly
compact the soil around the roots.

b. Place the tree in the hole.

i. Plant so the root flare is above the ground, never buried.
Plant the tree slightly high, with the start of the top woody
roots (aka “root flare) ~1 inch above the soil surface. All
roots should be buried, but the trunk should remain above
ground. As needed, adjust the depth and width of your pre-
dug hole by adding soil back to the hole, or digging deeper
and/or wider.

ii. Check that the tree is vertical / standing straight up from all angles.

iii. Splay out the roots to encourage them to grow outward like the spokes of a wheel, and not to circle
the trunk, as those will eventually strangle the tree.


http://treeauthority.net/
mailto:communitycanopyproject@gmail.com

iv. If some roots do not fit in the hole when splayed outward, dig a trench for those roots outwards into
the soil surrounding the hole. Make a slit in the turf, and tuck the long roots between the slit, about 4
or 5 inches under.

c. Fill the hole with the excavated soil, breaking up any large clumps. Do not use any fertilizers or soil
additives. Ensure that the tree remains vertical from all directions, and that the root flare remains above
the soil level. Add water regularly as you backfill with soil, but do not step on the soil to avoid
compaction.

® Water: ~10-15 gallons (or as much as soil will absorb) at planting time. Sufficient water will help the tree
establish competent roots.

@ Berm: Use upside down sod to create a circular berm under the mulch ring to hold water.

@® Mulch: Mulch trees using the 3x3x3 rule: 3” thick, 3” away from trunk (no mulch volcanoes!), and a 3ft
wide radius at minimum. Mulch helps maintain soil moisture, modulates soil temperature, provides nutrients
as it decomposes, suppresses weed growth, and protects from mower / string trimmer damage to the bark and
the root flare! It is imperative to maintain a good mulch circle. We recommend straight arborist wood chips -
no dyes, no chemical treatments, no artificial colors!

@ Protect from deer: Place the provided sturdy welded wire fence around the tree and hold it in place with the
two fiberglass stakes. When the tree has grown so that most of its foliage is above deer browse height (57),
you can replace the fencing with a bark guard to protect the trunk from buck rub. We understand that
fencing is not aesthetically pleasing, but without it, deer WILL destroy the tree! Fencing, replaced by a
bark guard when sufficiently large, is an absolute necessity for at least 3-4 years!

Caring for your young tree:

1. Water 5 gallons at a time, twice per week until the ground freezes. The roots should develop over the
winter. Begin watering again next spring once the tree begins to grow new leaves.

2. Resume watering in the spring, continuing until the following fall. You can stop watering regularly after
the tree has been in the ground for two years. Water during droughts and heat waves!! Water is essential
to help establish effective root systems, and insufficient watering is the most common cause of death for
young trees!

3. Maintain your mulch circle by adding fresh wood chips at least once per year, making certain that the root
flare remains above ground and mulch stays off the trunk. Mulch serves as a natural fertilizer so
additional fertilizer is not recommended.

August 2025



Plymouth Township’s 1st Annual Native Tree Giveaway
Saturday, September 27, 2025 9am - 12:30pm

TREE CARETAKER?S
PLEDGE

hereby pledge to:

Care for my tree and do my best to ensure it thrives in its new home!

Value my tree, even though it didn’t cost me anything.

Water my tree daily until 1 plant it in the ground.

Carefully follow the instructions provided with my tree. 1 will pay special

attention to:

- choose an appropriate location for my tree species to optimize its health
and survival,

- Tollow proper planting techniques (root flare slightly above ground, root
ball gently loosened),

- install proper mulching (3x3x3 rule or wider, maintain a mulch ring, and
AVOID mulch volcanoes)

- install the provided deer protection fencing and keep in place until the
tree is big enough to withstand deer pressure (usually at least 3 years).

Plant my tree on my property by November 1, 2025.

Submit a photo of my tree once it is planted on my property. Photos will be

reviewed by Plymouth EAB and Community Canopy Project. Email your photo to

CommunityCanopyProject@gmail.com or submit through this form

(https://forms.gle/ewcWvxMX2vb4uESB6) .

Water my tree regularly during its first two growing seasons. We recommend 5

gallons at a time, twice per week during the growing season. More during

droughts and heatwaves, and less during rainy periods.

Monitor my tree for signs of distress or decline (drought stress, dead

branches, etc), and email CommunityCanopyProject@gmail.com with any concerns.

Provide my tree with ongoing general maintenance.

Tree’s New Home Address Tree Species

Tree Caretaker’s Signature Date

Plymouth Township”’s Environmental Advisory Board heartily thanks
this Plymouth Tree Caretaker for helping to beautify
our community one tree at a time!


https://docs.google.com/document/d/1Zw6LN9QW-BWb0Lhy2P2oh956rl4oPWZx/edit?usp=drive_link&ouid=112684177068126595584&rtpof=true&sd=true
mailto:CommunityCanopyProject@gmail.com
https://forms.gle/ewcWvxMX2vb4uEsB6
mailto:CommunityCanopyProject@gmail.com

Plymouth Township

Native Tree Giveaway 2025
Species Information Sheet

This document provides basic information about each species available in

the 2025 Fall giveaway. You can click the species names in the heading for

more information. Please do some additional research about your desired
species to make sure it is the appropriate tree for your landscape!

Trees are sourced from Tree Authority Nursery in Bucks County.
They will arrive in a 5 gallon air-pruned cloth pot, and are usually between
4-10 feet tall.

The tree giveaway is funded by Plymouth Township. It was organized by
the Plymouth Township Environmental Advisory Board, and Community
Canopy Project (a local ecological restoration non-profit organization).



https://www.facebook.com/plymouthtownshipeab/
https://communitycanopyproject.wordpress.com/
https://communitycanopyproject.wordpress.com/

Small tree options
Small trees are ideal for smaller lots where space may be limited. These species
typically range from 15-25 feet tall and wide at maturity, and usually put on a nice
flowering display in the spring. These species are considered underwire compatible,
and will not grow tall enough to reach PECO power lines. These trees also do not have
an extensive root system, so they may be a potential option for garden beds closer to
the house or foundation. Small trees are the most popular option, but we encourage
you to plant a larger tree if you have the space, since they provide exponentially more
environmental and ecological benefits over time.






1. Eastern Redbud (Cercis canadensis)
A native understory tree that produces bright pink flowers before it leafs out in early spring! The pink
flowers are a favorite for early-emerging native bees, and once pollinated, will mature into pea-like
pods on the tree. Flowers and young pods are edible.

The Eastern redbud is a host plant for ~24 species of butterflies and moths in our area. It is a short-
lived species, usually lasting between 25-40 years, and usually requires a bit of structural pruning to
prevent structural issues as the tree ages.

Mature Height: 20 to 30 feet

Mature Spread: 25 to 30 feet

Preferred Sunlight: Full sun, part shade, or shadier (won't flower as well in dense shade)
Preferred Moisture: Dry to moist

Growth speed: Moderate to fast


https://mortonarb.org/plant-and-protect/trees-and-plants/redbud/
https://mortonarb.org/plant-and-protect/trees-and-plants/redbud/
https://mortonarb.org/plant-and-protect/trees-and-plants/redbud/

2. Flowering Dogwood (Cornus florida ‘Jean’s Appalachian Snow’)
A native woodland understory tree that produces big, showy, white bracts in mid-spring. Pollinated
flowers mature into bright red fruits that birds love. The cultivar ‘Jean’s Appalachian Snow’ boasts
increased tolerance to powdery mildew, a common pest of this species.

The flowering dogwood is a host plant for over 120 species of butterflies and moths in our area.
Disclaimer: do not plant this tree by itself in full sun. This tree prefers at least some shade
throughout the day, and it does best when its roots are completely shaded and consistently moist.
Consider planting on a woodland edge, in the shade of a mature tree, or on the side of your house
where the building casts shade on the tree’s roots. Please maintain a well-kept mulch ring around the
tree.

Mature Height: 20 to 30 feet

Mature Spread: 20 to 30 feet

Preferred Sunlight: Part shade, or shadier (capable of flowering even under dense shade). Avoid full
sun.

Preferred Moisture: average to moist

Growth speed: slow to moderate


https://mortonarb.org/plant-and-protect/trees-and-plants/flowering-dogwood/
https://mortonarb.org/plant-and-protect/trees-and-plants/flowering-dogwood/
https://mortonarb.org/plant-and-protect/trees-and-plants/flowering-dogwood/

3. Allegheny Serviceberry (Amelanchier laevis)
A small, multi-stemmed tree with showy white spring flowers that mature into delicious edible berries.
Also known as Juneberry, the fruit ripens in early June and is highly sought after by birds. Serves as
a host plant to 113 species of butterflies and moths in our area.

Does best in full sun with moist soils. If you desire to eat the fruit, you may want to avoid planting this

tree if you have many eastern red-cedars (Juniperus virginiana) around because Gymnosporangium
rust fungi often ruin most of the fruit.

Mature Height: 15-25 feet

Mature Spread: 15-25 feet

Preferred Sunlight: Full sun to partial shade
Preferred Moisture: Moist, well-drained soll
Growth speed: Moderate


https://plants.ces.ncsu.edu/plants/amelanchier-laevis/
https://plants.ces.ncsu.edu/plants/amelanchier-laevis/
https://plants.ces.ncsu.edu/plants/amelanchier-laevis/

4. American Hornbeam (Carpinus caroliniana)
A small, slow-growing understory tree with smooth, muscular-looking bark. Inconspicuous flowers
mature into small nutlets in papery bracts. Serves as a host plant to over 75 species of butterflies and
moths.

Hornbeam does best in part shade, on woodland edges or under a mature tree’s shade in moist soil
conditions. It does well in floodplains near streams and in shady rain gardens, so long as the soll
drains well afterwards. While the tree can grow in full sun, it struggles here if the soils aren’t
consistently moist.

Mature Height: 20-30 feet

Mature Spread: 20-30 feet

Preferred Sunlight: Partial to full shade
Preferred Moisture: Moist, well-drained soill
Growth Speed: Slow to moderate


https://plants.ces.ncsu.edu/plants/carpinus-caroliniana/
https://plants.ces.ncsu.edu/plants/carpinus-caroliniana/
https://plants.ces.ncsu.edu/plants/carpinus-caroliniana/




5. American plum (Prunus americana)
A small, thicket-forming tree with fragrant and showy spring flowers and a delicious edible fruit that is
eaten by people and by wildlife. One of the top host plants in our area, it supports over 450 species of
butterflies and moths!

Ideal for food forests, woodland edges, privacy barriers, and property edges. In its preferred
conditions, it will form a nice, spreading thicket with many stems which provide great habitat and
shelter for birds and wildlife. Birds will also love to eat the large amount of caterpillars that the tree
supports. Disclaimer: Avoid shady, stagnant, or wet areas.

Mature Height: 15-25 feet
Mature Spread: 15-25 feet
Preferred Sunlight: Full sun
Preferred Moisture: Average to
dry, well-drained soil

Growth Speed: moderate



https://www.missouribotanicalgarden.org/PlantFinder/PlantFinderDetails.aspx?kempercode=e830
https://www.missouribotanicalgarden.org/PlantFinder/PlantFinderDetails.aspx?kempercode=e830
https://www.missouribotanicalgarden.org/PlantFinder/PlantFinderDetails.aspx?kempercode=e830

Medium tree options
Medium trees are ideal for average-sized lots. These species typically range from 35-
60 feet tall and wide at maturity, and usually provide some shade as they mature,
which can help lower energy costs and keep your home cooler during the summer.
These species should not be planted under PECO power lines. These are great
options for a front or back yard shade tree that won't eventually tower over or threaten
your house. These species provide good ecological and environmental benefits.



1. River birch (Betula nigra ‘Heritage’)
A popular tree often used in landscaping for its striking exfoliating bark and tolerance to wet
conditions. It produces inconspicuous flowers in spring and small, cone-like fruiting structures. It is
one of the top wildlife trees in our area, and serves as a host plant to over 380 species of butterflies

and moths. The cultivar ‘Heritage’ is noted for its extra showy exfoliating bark, and more heat
tolerance.

This tree is ideal for moist-to-wet soils prone to flooding, streambanks, and rain gardens, but is also
adaptable to average soils in your front or back yard. Disclaimer: Avoid super dry or compacted
soils.

Mature Height: 40-60 feet

Mature Spread: 25-45 feet

Preferred Sunlight: Full sun
Preferred Moisture: Moist to wet, well-
drained soil

Growth Speed: Moderate to fast


https://www.missouribotanicalgarden.org/PlantFinder/PlantFinderDetails.aspx?kempercode=a200
https://www.missouribotanicalgarden.org/PlantFinder/PlantFinderDetails.aspx?kempercode=a200
https://www.missouribotanicalgarden.org/PlantFinder/PlantFinderDetails.aspx?kempercode=a200




2. Black gum (Nyssa sylvatica)
A long-lived tree with brilliant fall color. Its small greenish-white flowers are a favorite for pollinators in
the spring. The flowers mature into dark blue drupes (berries) which are favored by birds. In the fall,
its glossy, bright red, orange, and yellow colors are hard to beat! It serves as a host plant to 36
species of butterflies and moths.

This tree is an ideal front or back yard tree in full sun. It typically exhibits a strong central trunk with
smaller branches growing out at unique angles. Great for rain gardens, near streams, or even in
flooded areas. Disclaimer: Avoid planting in alkaline / basic (greater than 7.0 pH) soils.

Mature Height: 30-50 feet

Mature Spread: 20-30 feet

Preferred Sunlight: Full sun to partial shade
Preferred Moisture: Average to wet, acidic soill
Growth Speed: Slow to moderate


https://plants.ces.ncsu.edu/plants/nyssa-sylvatica/
https://plants.ces.ncsu.edu/plants/nyssa-sylvatica/
https://plants.ces.ncsu.edu/plants/nyssa-sylvatica/




3. Red Maple (Acer rubrum)
A highly adaptable, fast-growing maple with vibrant red fall foliage. It is one of the first native plants to
bloom in very early spring, and displays bright red pom-pom-like flowers that mature into paired
samaras (helicopter seeds). In the fall, its leaves turn a nice red or orange color before falling. It
serves as a host plant to close to 300 species of butterflies and moths.

Red maple is a very adaptable tree and does well pretty much anywhere, as long as soils aren’t too
compacted or low in nutrients. It is the most commonly-used native landscaping tree in our area, and
you'll often see it planted in front or back yards.

Mature Height: 40-70 feet

Mature Spread: 30-50 feet

Preferred Sunlight: Full sun to partial shade
Preferred Moisture: Moist, well-drained soil
Growth Speed: Moderate to fast


https://www.missouribotanicalgarden.org/PlantFinder/PlantFinderDetails.aspx?kempercode=j170
https://www.missouribotanicalgarden.org/PlantFinder/PlantFinderDetails.aspx?kempercode=j170
https://www.missouribotanicalgarden.org/PlantFinder/PlantFinderDetails.aspx?kempercode=j170

4. Black Willow (Salix nigra)
A fast-growing, moisture-loving tree often found along waterways. It produces bright yellow flowers
(catkins) in spring, which support early-season bees. Flowers mature into small capsules with cottony

seeds. A top wildlife tree in our area, it serves as a host plant to over 380 species of butterflies and
moths!

Best for streambanks, wet, swampy areas, pond margins, and consistently-moist rain gardens. This
native tree puts on a nice display with its thin, drooping leaves. Disclaimer: Do not plant in average
or dry soils. It may do well at first, but eventually will succumb to droughts. It needs consistent
moisture.

Mature Height: 30-60 feet

Mature Spread: 30-60 feet

Preferred Sunlight: Full sun

Preferred Moisture: Wet to consistently moist soll
Growth Speed: Fast


https://www.wildflower.org/plants/result.php?id_plant=SANI
https://www.wildflower.org/plants/result.php?id_plant=SANI
https://www.wildflower.org/plants/result.php?id_plant=SANI

Large tree options
Large trees are ideal for bigger lots, or average-sized lots with lots of space. These
species typically range in height from 60-100 feet tall and 50-60 feet wide at maturity.
Remember, it will take decades to reach this height, so don't let that deter you from
planting these. These trees tend to be the most ecologically and environmentally
valuable species in our region, and form the keystone of many of our terrestrial
ecosystems. Their importance cannot be understated - we need more big native trees
around!

These trees provide lots of shade as they mature, which can help lower energy costs
and keep your home cooler during the summer. These species should not be planted
under PECO power lines. They are great options for a front or back yard shade tree
when planted away from the house.



1. Swamp White Oak (Quercus bicolor)
A great shade tree that can live over 300 years! Native oaks like this one are the most important trees
for wildlife in our area, and they serve as a host plant to over 500 species of butterflies and moths! It
produces drooping male catkin flowers in the spring, which pollinate the female flowers that will
mature into acorns in the fall. These acorns are very highly sought after by wildlife, and are edible for
us after some processing.

It prefers moist-to-wet soils, but is adaptable to a range of conditions except for dry, upland sites. It
tolerates occasional flooding. It is a type of white oak (Quercus section Quercus), and therefore is
more tolerant of diseases and pests. The tops of the leaves are smooth and shiny, while the
undersides are fuzzy and velveteen.

Mature Height: 60-80 feet

Mature Spread: 40-50 feet

Preferred Sunlight: Full sun

Preferred Moisture: Moist to wet soils, but adaptable to average
Growth Speed: Moderate


https://www.missouribotanicalgarden.org/PlantFinder/PlantFinderDetails.aspx?kempercode=q330
https://www.missouribotanicalgarden.org/PlantFinder/PlantFinderDetails.aspx?kempercode=q330

2. White Oak (Quercus alba)
A majestic, long-lived oak with strong wood and very high wildlife value. It can live up to 500 years! It
produces drooping male catkin flowers in the spring, which pollinate the female flowers that will
mature into acorns in the fall. These acorns are very highly sought after by wildlife, and are edible for
us after some processing.

Native oaks like this one are the most important trees for wildlife in our area, and they serve as a host
plant to over 500 species of butterflies and moths! The research of Dr. Doug Tallamy highlights white
oak as perhaps the most important native tree in our region. Unfortunately, the white oak has
declined drastically in abundance in the eastern US since European settlement.

Ideal in average-to-dry, acidic soils free of root disturbances like flooding. It is quite tolerant of drought
once established, but it doesn't like standing water. Disclaimer: Don’t plant near streams, ponds, or
other bodies of water.

Mature Height: 50-85 feet

Mature Spread: 50—-80 feet

Preferred Sunlight: Full sun

Preferred Moisture: Average to dry, well-drained, acidic soil
Growth Speed: Slow to moderate


https://plants.ces.ncsu.edu/plants/quercus-alba/
https://plants.ces.ncsu.edu/plants/quercus-alba/
https://plants.ces.ncsu.edu/plants/quercus-alba/

3. American EIm (Ulmus americana ‘Princeton’)
A disease-resistant cultivar of the iconic American elm with a classic vase-shaped form. Small
reddish-green flowers emerge in spring that mature into small, flat, circular samaras. It serves as a
host plant to roughly 200 species of butterflies and moths.

A very quick-growing native shade tree that, once established, is capable of adding up to 5-6 feet of
new growth per year while young! These trees tend to need a bit of structural pruning over their first
5-10 years to help them maintain a healthy, single-stemmed structure. The ‘Princeton’ cultivar was
selected for very high tolerance of Dutch EIm Disease, which previously wiped out millions of elms.

Mature Height: 60-80 feet

Mature Spread: 40-60 feet

Preferred Sunlight: Full sun

Preferred Moisture: Moist, well-drained soill
Growth Speed: Fast


https://jfschmidt.com/all-trees/princeton-elm/
https://jfschmidt.com/all-trees/princeton-elm/
https://jfschmidt.com/all-trees/princeton-elm/




The Benefits of Street Trees*

Property values
As the trees on a street mature, property values tend to increase. Homes with trees have been shown to

sell for 3—-15%** more. Given the other benefits of trees—their beauty, health effects, flood mitigation,
and ability to cool and refresh the air—trees offer a great return on this investment.

Traffic calming—and driver calming

Trees are proven to slow average driving speeds.
Trees also make a significant impact on the lives
on drivers, even those just passing through an
area.

Community identity

Many neighborhoods, buildings, or developments
are named for their trees. Common place names
such as Oakridge, EImvale, Maple Grove celebrate
the effect of local trees on creating a sense of
place. Trees support neighborhood engagement by making it easier and more relaxing to be outside.

Beauty
Healthy trees are aesthetically pleasing. They create variations in color, texture, and height in the visual

landscape.

Cooler air

Trees lower the temperature in developed areas. They offer shade, large canopies like a parasol. They
also release water vapor into the air, which is why the shade beneath a tree is often fresher than shade
beneath a patio umbrella. In studies of “physiologically equivalent temperature,” or how cool we feel we
are, trees can moderate temperatures between 9-27°F.

Cleaner air

Trees help manage air quality by reducing particulate and absorbing gases. A large healthy tree can
remove 3.5 Ibs of pollutants in one year. A single tree can have 5 acres worth of surfaces when
calculating all the leaves and branches.

Physical health
Trees create walk appeal. Where space is beautiful and safe, people are more likely to be active,

including walking or riding a bicycle. Trees encourage healthy lifestyles. “Active design,” including trees,
is an environmental way to people moving and support their health outcomes. Increased activity may be
why better heart health and longevity are correlated with green-space rich neighborhoods.

Mental health

Several studies show that tree canopy creates lower rates of ‘psychological distress’. People are happier
and less likely to depression when they’ve got connection to nature. This lower stress is evident in
decreases in blood pressure and cortisol.


https://www.reliance-foundry.com/blog/active-design-guidelines#gref
https://www.sciencealert.com/urban-tree-coverage-can-significantly-reduce-stress-study-finds

Ecology
Trees also help promote regional biodiversity. Birds, butterflies, squirrels, chipmunks, and other local

fauna require the habitat and sanctuary provided by trees.

Water management
Much of a city’s built environment is impermeable to water. Hardscape (concrete, stone, and asphalt)
prevents groundwater replenishment and produces run-off. In light showers, leaves and branches
capture or absorb water on their surfaces,
where it can evaporate. Water that runs down
branches, bark, and roots is channeled to soil
and groundwater. Roots also help build the
water holding capacity of soil. Roots also
prevent soil erosion by binding it.

Trees use water in their life processes. Rather
than simply returning water to the ground, a
tree also returns moisture to the airin a
process called transpiration. A mature oak tree
can return 40,000 gallons of water to the
atmosphere per year!

Adding oxygen and removing carbon dioxide

Trees are our biggest tool in the struggle to lower atmospheric carbon dioxide and mitigate climate
change. Research has shown that reforestation on non-food producing lands, both urban and rural, is a
way to capture 200 billion pounds of carbon dioxide over the next 50—100 years.

* Extracted (and edited) from “11 Benefits of Street Trees in Urban Spaces, Reasons for cities to invest in green
infrastructure”, Reliance Foundry website (https://www.reliance-foundry.com).
** per Arbor Day Foundation



https://www.reliance-foundry.com/

Tree Authority LLC

Hasan Malik ISA Certified Arborist #PD-2099A

602 Minsi Trail Perkasie, PA 18944 TreeAuthority.net
(2158) 694-9607 Hasan@TreeAuthority.net

Bill To: Plymouth Twp | Community Canopy Projec Phone:

Invoice #: 2025-1218

Address: 700 Belvoir Rd, Plymouth 6/21/2028
Meeting, PA 19462

Category Description Qty |Unit Price | Tax Price
Nursery Eastern Redbud--#5 7 $40.00 $0.00 $ 280.00
Nursery Appalachian snow dogwood--#5 6 $40.00 $0.00 $ 240.00
Nursery Heritage River Birch--#5 5 $40.00 $0.00 $ 200.00
Nursery Black Gum--#5 5 $40.00 $0.00 $ 200.00
Nursery Red Maple Native--#5 5 $40.00 $0.00 $ 200.00
Nursery White Oak--#5 4 $40.00 $0.00 $ 160.00
Nursery Swamp White Oak--#5 4 $40.00 $0.00 $ 160.00
Nursery Black Willow--#5 3 $40.00 $0.00 $ 120.00
Nursery Allegheny Serviceberry--#5 3 $40.00 $0.00 $ 120.00
Nursery American Hornbeam--#5 3 $40.00 $0.00 $ 120.00
Nursery American Plum--#5 3 $40.00 $0.00 $ 120.00
Nursery Princeton Elm--#5 2 $40.00 $0.00 $ 80.00
Stakes 6' Fiberglass Stakes 3/8" 100 $2.00 $0.00 $ 200.00
Delivery Delivery 1 $110.00 $0.00 $ 110.00

$ -

$ R

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ R

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ R

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ R

$ -

$ -

Total Trees: 50
Tax Rate 0.00%
Sales Tax $0.00

How to pay:

Please make check payable to Tree Authority LLC, and mail to 602 Minsi Trail, Perkasie PA 18944 Or Venmo @treeauthority

Total Due $ 2,310.00

Thanks for your business! Please contact us any time with your tree needs.



mailto:Hasan@TreeAuthority.net

	Agenda

	Page 01

	Page 02


	300 Lee Drive

	ZHB Application

	Exhibit "A"

	Exhibit "B"


	BET

	One Sheet

	Concept A

	Concept A - Rev1

	Fiscal Impact Analysis

	Transportation Impact Assessment


	EAB - 
Tree Giveaway



